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Engineering the Future 
for our region and its people
Nass Corporation B.S.C. is a Bahraini Public Joint Stock Company established 
and listed on the Bahrain Stock Exchange in 2006 with a paid up capital of 

million. Currently, the paid up capital is BHD 22 million.

Since its inception, the Corporation has emerged as a leading, and integrated 
Construction Solutions Provider. With operations in the Kingdom of Bahrain, 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and the United Arab Emirates. Nass Corporation 
has carved for itself a unique position to deliver complete turnkey installations.
The Corporation aims to provide clients with a convenient single source for
multiple services. 

BHD 20

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  
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MISSION
At Nass Corporation we are committed to 
adding value to our stakeholders: We nurture 
the  personal and professional growth of our 
employees through training and development, 
and build solid, mutually  relationships 
with our partners and suppliers.  We 
endeavour to continually exceed our clients’ 
expectations through the consistent delivery of 
product and service excellence as we strive 
to support the growth and development of 
the local and regional construction industry.

VISION
It is the vision of Nass Corporation to be a major 
regional player in the industry and to provide 
innovative,turnkey construction and industrial 
solutions.

VALUES
• Honesty

• Integrity

• Excellence

• Transparency

• Customer Orientation

Engineering the Future 
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BD Million

20172018

Revenue 182.770

Total assets

Financial highlights

Appropriations

158.629

Total equity 64.343

and  depreciation 12.306

4.262

173.404

157.965

62.984

10.099

3.525

Proposed dividend 1.075 1.075

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  
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I firmly believe that the company’s success 
stems from the values of excellence, integrity, 
and transparency that were planted by the 
late Abdulla bin Ahmed Nass, and drove the 
company forward throughout the years. The 
company has faced difficult times since its 
establishment, the least of which was the 
worldwide financial crisis and its long-term 
effects, and the continuing regional volatility. 
As a agile and flexible company deeply 
committed to its roots and cultural values, we 
were able to overcome these challenges and 
maintain our position.

This was an exceptional year for the Kingdom 
of Bahrain’s construction industry, which 
faced significant difficulties. Just as several 
industries faced challenges in 2018 that 
affected their performance, the construction 
sector also faced a major challenge, as it had 
to operate at very low profit margin levels. 
Nass Corporation also faced several 
company-specific challenges, including 
increased prices for many subsidised 
materials, such as fuel, electricity and water, 
as well as an unexpected surge in the prices 
of quarry output used for construction work. 
This came at a time when we needed a large 
volume of raw materials for construction work 
in the Alba and Nuwaidrat intersection 
bridges development project.

Nass Corporation always looks forward to 
large development projects that will leave a 
mark on infrastructure and support continued 
investment in the Kingdom of Bahrain and its 
prosperity. There are many new projects that 
are currently being studied at ministries and 
other official bodies, which will enter the 

I am honored to present to you Nass Corporation’s 
2018 Annual Report. I am proud of the prominent role 
that Nass Corporation has played in the many 
projects it has been involved in over the years and 
that which it will continue to play in building and 
developing modern Bahrain. The company is proud 
to be a part of national initiatives under the guidance 
of the wise leadership of this country, a major 
supporter of industrial sector growth in the Kingdom, 
and an active partner in the continuous progress of 
the Kingdom as a gateway for GCC trade.

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  
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implementation phase during the 
second half of 2019.

We are optimistic that many 
significant projects will be 
implemented in 2019. Large 
Bahraini infrastructure projects 
include a fourth Muharraq bridge 
which will connect Muharraq and 
Busaiteen in the north of Bahrain, 
the metro project, the BAPCO 
refinery expansion project, the 
second causeway connecting 
Bahrain and Saudi Arabia, and 
Alba’s seventh pipeline, not to 
mention many upcoming residential 
projects, and private projects such 
as the second and largest phase of 
The Avenues mall.

We are proud to have delivered 
several projects in 2018, most 
notably the early stages of the 
Hawar Bridge for the Alba 
intersection, which coincided with 
Bahrain’s National Day celebrations 
during December. We are also truly 
proud that we are a Bahraini 
company that was able to undertake 
such a turnkey project when such 
largescale work is usually only taken 
by foreign companies. Also, as part 
of our commitment to empower 
Bahraini Women we have recruited 
several new female employees last 
year. 

On another note, Delmon ReadyMix 
with its specialised products 

despite the changes taking place in 
the market, which included a 
decline in cash inflows and rising 
prices. However, the company 
continued to build on the foundation 
of its success in 2017, working on 
projects such as in the new sixth line 
smelter at Aluminum Bahrain (Alba), 
and the Alba and Nuwaidrat 
intersection bridges development 
project which were delivered at the 
end of 2018.

In July 2018, Delmon Precast put 
the final touches on a joint project 
with Nass Contracting, as it was 
assigned the task of supplying the 
latter with large concrete units as 
part of its designated tasks in Alba’s 
expansion project. The company 
was able to construct a temporary 
facility for the production of precast 
concrete molds north of the 
project’s location, manufacturing 
more than 4,100 units, some 
weighing more than 50 tonnes.

In 2018, Nass Scafform also 
expanded its operations in Bahrain 
and the GCC, and saw an increase 
in turnover across all lines of 
business in existing and new 
projects. These mainly came from 
revenues from ALBA’s sixth smelter, 
Bahrain Petroleum Company 
(Bapco) projects, and power, water, 
oil and gas plants. There are even 
bigger projects expected in 2019 at 
these companies and others, which 

well for Nass Scafform.

As a company that is constantly 
learning, adapting and innovating, 
we are always ready to accept new 
methods and ways of accomplishing 
tasks, including restructuring our 
organization to ensure that we 
continue to move forward and grow. 
Our commitment to our company's 
systems and values and to 
continuous innovation is the key to 
our success which will drive us 
towards further prosperity.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I 
would like to express my sincere 
happiness and appreciation to the 
wise leadership of the Kingdom of 
Bahrain, all ministries and 
government institutions, the Central 
Bank of Bahrain and the Bahrain 
Bourse for their constant support. I 
would also like to take this 
opportunity to personally thank all 
the shareholders of Nass 
Corporation. Without your loyalty 
and support, we would not have 
made this significant progress. I look 
forward to further achievements and 
prosperity for Nass Corporation and 
the Kingdom of Bahrain.

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  
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NASS CORPORATION
COMPRISES OF SIX DIVISIONS 
AND FIVE SUBSIDIARIES
(THREE WHOLLY-OWNED AND TWO PARTLY OWNED)
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A division of Nass Corporation B.S.C., 
Nass Industrial Services (NIS) is one of 
the major mechanical and structural 
engineering contractor in the region. 
The Company is engaged in Shutdown 
and Maintenance Projects, EPC of 
Packaged Unit, General Plant 
Construction, Heavy Engineering & 
Process Equipment Manufacturing, 
Refractory & Insulation, Industrial 
Painting projects in the Kingdom as well 
as in other GCC countries. 

Driven by a new strategic direction and 
management style, NIS underwent a 
series of changes in 2018 that improved 
operational efficiency and optimized 
resources utilisation. 

In line with the more organized and 
disciplined approach, NIS streamlined 
direct and indirect costs and 
restructured its workforce with a strong 
focus on human capital development. 
Additional recruitment also enabled the 
Company to broaden its expertise and 
provided more chances for Bahraini 
engineers to realize their potential. 

During 2018, NIS achieved greater 
control of his activities and completed 
426 superstructures projects proffered 

  htob dezingocer hcihw ,labuD yb
speed and quality of the work. The year 
also saw the Company take a stronger 
stance on its prerequisite requirements 
for selecting new projects. Feasibility 
studies that take into consideration each 
project’s destination, timeframe, 
constraints, and scope of work are more 
carefully analyzed before accepting 
new jobs to ensure optimal results.
 
NIS concentrated heavily to mechanical 
construction and shutdown projects in 
the Oil and Gas sector in 2018, which 
yielded positive results. The Company 
secured new jobs with Alba, explored 
new opportunities with a major 
European company specializing in steel 
and aluminum plants, and was 
shortlisted for several other prominent 
projects. NIS aims to apply the same 
strategy in Saudi Arabia, a market that 
has huge potential and remains an area 
of active interest.

To increase productivity and the raise 
the quality of its services, NIS carefully 
and strategically planned new 
technological equipment investment for 
2019 optimizing the current tech assets 
, including new welding technologies 
and IT systems. The Company is also 
investing in a new management solution 
system, which provides greater insight 

into efficiency to be added to new 
document management software that 
will improve drastically the data 
management. 

Compliance with international standards 
and industry best practices remained a 
priority during the year, which saw NIS 
update its ISO system and ASME 
certification. This not only ensured 
stringent adherence to quality and 
safety processes, but also reaffirmed the 
Company’s commitment to continuous 
improvement.  

With a stronger and more streamlined 
workforce, NIS is well positioned to 
continue its positive growth trajectory. 
Looking ahead to 2019 and beyond, the 
Company is firmly focused on 
enhancing its capabilities and adding 
more prestigious projects to its portfolio 
in Bahrain and Saudi Arabia.

Nass Industrial Services
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Nass Commercial began operations as 
a support function in the early 1960’ 
S.The Company became independent in 
1986 and took over responsibility for the 
mercantile division and other trading 
activities, and over the past two 
decades, has grown to become an 
industry leader. The Company 
represents various international 
manufacturers and provides 

comprehensive sales, distribution, 
Rental, spare parts, and after-sales 
services. 

Despite being a challenging year 2018, 
in which it faced cash flow issues with 
clients, resulting in decrease of the 
revenue, Nass Commercial continued 
with its mission to improve its level of 
service and offer ever higher quality 

products with low ownership costs. 

Being part of a renowned company like 
Nass Corporation, the division Nass 
Commercial, through its products 
promises customers’ confidence in 
terms of quality, safety and 
environmental aspects.

New product introductions during 2018 
included Gulf Oil and Daemo Breakers, 
which complemented to an expansion of 
its existing product line. The division is 
currently in talks to forge new product 
partnerships, which will be announced 
in 2019.

An important theme during the year was 
a major software and hardware 
infrastructure overhauling, which also 
includes heavy investment in logistics of 
store & delivery and also purchase of 
new vehicles. The division also 
continued to invest in its staff, with a 
range of commercial and technical 
trainings offered in conjunction with 
suppliers. Just like the other divisions of 
Nass Corporation, the year 2018 also 
saw Nass Commercial improving its 
quality, safety and environmental 
certifications. Nass Commercial 
successfully obtained IMS from Bureau 
Veritas in the month of April, which 
consists of following three certifications:
1. ISO 9001:2015 for Quality 
Management System,

2. ISO 2015 :14001 for Environmental 
Management System, and

3. OHSAS 18001 for Health & Safety 
Management System.

Out of %5 of the registered companies 
that have IMS certifications, Nass 
Commercial is one of the niche 
organizations that have secured three 
certifications from Bureau Veritas.

Nass Commercial has continued serving 
at its best in the Bahrain Market and is 
persistently working towards its mission 
of providing Turnkey Industrial Solutions 
pertaining to high quality products and 
services.

Nass Commercial 
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Nass Scafform is one of the leading 
scaffolding and formwork companies in 
the Gulf. The division of Nass 
Corporation specialises in the energy 
and petrochemical sector, and has 
successfully undertaken projects for 
international and regional clientele.

Nass Scafform saw increases in profits 
as the division serviced new and 
existing projects across the GCC. 
Overall profits were up by over %50 from 
BD1 million in 2017 to BD1.6 million in 
2018, as the company, one of the 
leading scaffolding and formwork 
companies in the Gulf, completed 
multi-million dollar projects for a range of 
international, and regional clientele. 
Although there were two major oil and 
gas shut downs in the UAE and Saudi 
Arabia during the year, the sector, 
traditionally the division’s most important 
revenue stream, took a back seat to 
heavy industry and construction.
 
Building on the stellar performance of 
the previous year, Bahrain remained the 
largest growth market. Scaffolding 
works for Bapco and the Coke Silo at 
Alba’s Line 6, started previously, were 
highlights, as was the Power Station, 
another major Alba project expected to 
contribute greatly to 2019’s results. The 
increased market activity has allowed 
the division to double its workforce to 
400 people over the last two years. In 
fact, so staggering has the growth been, 
that the company had to make 
exceptional maneuvers to ensure that it 
had enough materials to cover all its 
projects. 

The highlight 2018 achievement was the 
newly launched insulation department in 
Bahrain doing its first major project, a 
new business line which Nass Scafform 

Nass Scafform Contracting 
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plans to roll out across Nass’s projects 
in Saudi, Abu Dhabi.
Currently pre-qualified with all major 
EPC, and Oil and Gas authorities in 
Bahrain and UAE, the Saudi operation is 
working rigorously to get prequalified as 
an approved contractor with ARAMCO, 
the source of many lucrative KSA 
projects. Saudi Arabian business saw 
improvements over the year after a slow 
2017.

Abdu Dhabi operations also forged 
along despite a tough first half of the 
year due to Abu Dhabi Airport Project 
Demobilization, one of the division’s 
largest and most technically complex 
projects to date, work at the airport 
involved the suspension of scaffold 
structures spread over a total area of 
65,000 square meters. Revenue and 
profits recovered in Q3 & Q4, with major 
projects secured in the oil & gas sector.
 
Nass Scafform predicts a positive 2019, 
with Bahrain continuing to take 
advantage of the buoyant market and an 
increase in oil & gas  projects across the 
GCC.
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Nass Sand Processing Plant (NSPP) 
was formed in 1977, to supply washed 
building sand to Bahrain’s construction 
industry.

Currently, NSPP is the largest supplier of 
washed sand in Bahrain, with a 
production capacity of over 2,000 tons 
per day.

During 2017, NSPP has acquired the 
assets of Dream Sand Washing 
Company. This asset acquisition is set to 
increase NSPP’s production, which will 
help supply the required amount of 
washed sand to other NASS divisions 
such as Delmon Readymix and to cater 
the increasing sand demand in the local 
markets.

Nass sand processing plant is 
accredited with OHSAS 18001:2007 
Occupational Health and Safety 
Management system, NSPP is 
committed to internationally accepted 
best practices and  comply with 
applicable Health, safety and 
environmental legislation and other 
requirements in our operations.

The plant  is committed to protect the 
Health, safety and security of  our 
employees, contractors, customers ,as 
well as the assets we operate  and all 
others who come in contact with our 
operations, also committed  to conduct 
our business in a sustainable manner to 
safeguard the  environment and 
community we operate in.

Nass Sand Processing Plant

Nass Ice Factory NIF owns and operates 
a reverse osmosis water desalinization 
plant that produces over 200,000 
Gallons of sweet water per day and 
three plants producing approximately 
85 tons of ice blocks per day. The 
Company is the Kingdom of Bahrain’s 
leading supplier of sweet water and ice
blocks to industrial establishments, 
hotels, restaurants, cold stores, 
supermarket, fishermen and the 
construction industry.

Nass Ice Factory is accredited with 
OHSAS 18001:2007  Occupational 
Health and Safety Management system, 
NIF is committed to internationally 
accepted best practices and comply 
with applicable Health, safety and 
environmental legislation  and other 
requirements in our operations.

The factory committed to protect the 
Health, safety and security  of our 
employees, contractors, customers ,as 
well as the assets we  operate and all 
others who come in contact with our 
operations, also committed to conducts 
our business in a sustainable manner to 
safeguard the environment and 
community we operate in.

Nass Ice Factory



Established in 1982 as an independent 
trading division of Nass The Group, the 
division operates as an importer, 
wholesaler, retailer, and supplier to retail 
markets, franchisees, and caterers of 
frozen and dry food products. The 
Company handles a wide range of 
items, including frozen and chilled beef, 
lamb, poultry, fish, rice, oil, dairy 
products, spices, pulses, and lentils that 
are imported from the USA, 
New-Zealand, Europe, Brazil, Australia, 
Singapore, Pakistan, and India.

Nass Foods retained its strong position 
in the food service sector throughout the 
year. Despite challenging market 
conditions in 2018, the Company met all 
sales targets, while continuing to make 
steady and confident operational 
improvements, such as enhancing its 
digital capabilities and improving 
customer service. 

Hypermarkets surged in popularity 
throughout the year by offering a better 
shopping experience with a broader 
range of products at discounted prices. 
Although this ensured high levels of 
consumer spending, the rebate systems 
utilised by hypermarkets had a 
substantial impact on the Company’s 
profit margins, causing gross operating 
income to shrink from the levels of the 

previous year.
To further improve the efficiency of its 
fleet, the Company implemented a new 
GPS tracking system, which reduced 
downtime, maximised vehicle utilisation, 
and enabled it to manage its drivers 
more effectively. In addition, the 
introduction of a new Point of Sale 
system (POS) streamlined business 
operations, accelerated transactions, 
optimised record keeping and inventory 
management, and, most importantly, 
improved customer service. 

In line with its commitment to following 
international standards and best 
practices, the Company began the 
stringent process of acquiring the 
OHSAS 18001 certification and will 
complete the ongoing upgrade of its 
ISO 45001 certification in 2019. These 
certifications not only reaffirm the 
Company’s prudent approach to 
occupational health and safety, they 
also ensure it adheres to the unified 
vision of the Nass Corporation. 
Nass Foods is cautiously optimistic for 
2019 and remains committed to 
delivering a large and diverse product 
line to its growing customer base. To 
ensure its goals are aligned with an 
evolving market environment, it has set 
ambitious targets aimed at growing its 
retail sector presence, including 
supplying more items to hypermarkets 
and supermarkets. 

Nass Foods

19

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  



20

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  



SUBSIDIARIES
The three wholly owned subsidiaries of Nass 
Corporation B.S.C. are:

1. Nass Contracting Co. W.L.L.

2. Nass Electrical Contracting Co.W.L.L.

3. Nass Mechanical Contracting Co. W.L.L. (NMC)

21
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Nass Contracting has undertaken 
numerous projects of national 
importance for both the public and the 
private sector. Nass Contracting’s scope 
of activities includes civil engineering 
works for commercial and residential 
buildings, construction of industrial 
plants, sewerage lines, drainage 
schemes and pipelines, land reclamation 
offshore work such as piling, jetty 
construction, and dredging. The 
company has built an enviable track 
record for the successful execution of 
many prestigious projects including 
Power Plants, Petrochemical Plants, 
Steel Rolling Mills, Cement Plants, the 
Bahrain World Trade Center and more.

Despite a difficult year, profits were up 
and higher than forecasted across all 
Nass Contracting divisions except for 
UAE operations. The company was able 
to forge ahead thanks to a continuation of 
close partnerships with stakeholders, by 
striving for continual improvement, 
supported by the updated Integrated 
Management System development 
Project, and by taking a proactive 
approach to raising the bar on 
performance across the business. 

Challenges that had to be overcome 
included ongoing slippage on the water 

station projects; delays in payments from 
a major client, Emirates Global Alumini-
um, and a slow rollout of ALBA Line 6 
packages, which resulted in some 
abortive labour and staff costs. The 
reduction in turnover in the UAE could 
not sustain the overheads required to 
operate the Abu Dhabi and Dubai 
offices, necessitating scaling back opera-
tions in the UAE. Apart from the ALBA 
Line 6 projects, other major projects 
included Marassi Al Bahrain and the Alba 
and Nuwaidrat Interchanges, the latter 
saw all bridges and approaches success-
fully completed with the remaining works 
due in 2019. 

A significant number of tenders were 
submitted during 2018, however circa 
BD380m is yet to be awarded. 

Focus during 2019 will be the BAPCO 
modernization programme, infrastructure 
projects through the Ministry of Works, 
and major building works like King Abdul-
la Medical City (KAMC) and the Sakhir 
Convention Centre. Further focus will be 
on the smooth transition to the new 
Integrated Management System (IMS) to 
ensure consistency among all projects 
and sites, and to see the successful 
transition to the new ISO 45001:2018 
management standards. This upgrade 
requires supply chain management 
hence the company is currently revising 

its pre-qualification criteria to focus on 
auditing the supply chain to ensure those 
working for Nass Contracting meet the 
minimum standards. 

Nass Contracting is leading Nass Corpo-
ration’s initiative to produce a 3D Induc-
tion Video and Supervisors Booklet. This 
will include revisions to the company 
training matrix and an automation of the 
training module that can be adopted and 
tailored by all subsidiaries. A new and 
improved Quality and Occupational 
Health and Safety Reporting system was 
also introduced to properly track and 
benchmark performance across the 
business.

Greater HR efficiencies resulted in the 
employment of key personnel as part of 
the Management Team. The company 
continues to improve its Bahraini quota 
and implemented an initiate to train 
Bahraini nationals to form part of its 
Health Safety & Environment (HS&E) 
teams by means of a work experience 
programme. 

Out in the field, the ALBA Line 6 and the 
ALBA and Nuwaidrat Interchange 
projects respectively achieved 12 million 
and 6 million man hours without a Lost 
Time Incident (LTI).

Nass Contracting
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Nass Contracting comprises the following three divisions:

• Nass Asphalt
• Nass Landscapes
• Nass Plumbing

Despite a year of fierce competition, 
Nass Asphalt commenced operations in 
2001, and since then has established a 
reputation in the Road Construction 
industry for competitiveness, quality, and 
innovation. The Company participates in 
all levels of projects from car parks, 
tennis courts and residential roads, to 
major highways, airfields and industrial 
infrastructures and has developed a 
multi-faceted capability for road 
construction and its allied businesses.

which forced down prices across the 
industry, Nass Asphalt grew significantly 
in 2018, both in terms of the projects 
worked on and the size of its team. 
Leveraging the advantage of being part 
of one of the largest contractors in the 
Kingdom, the division worked on several 
landmark projects, Alba Interchange, a 

range of oil field work at Tatweer, and 
Maintenance Works at Bahrain Interna-
tional Airport. Other noteworthy projects 
undertaken during 2018 was for Bechtel 
on ALBA Potline 6 Expansion, where it 
placed roads for Nass Contracting and 
transported excavated rock for process-
ing and returning to the Project as 
sub-bases. Nass Asphalt also 
commenced undertaking road marking 
works further enhancing its expanding 
business portfolio.  Nass Asphalt also 
supported other contractors such as 
Cebarco, where we constructed the 
primary road network in comprising of 
sub-base and asphalt pavement on the 
Diyar Al Muharraq mega development. 

Subbase sales were up by %65 to a 
record of 1,860,000 tons. Asphalt sales 
were  also up by 30 per cent to a record 
420,000 tons for the 2018. This included 
more than 420,000 tonnes of imported 

aggregates used for the manufacturing 
of asphalt. Nass Asphalt is among the 
few aggregates importers in Bahrain, a 
necessary practice to meet the demand 
not satisfied by local sources. 

The spike in the number of projects 
required a response by the division’s 
management, which resulted in an 
increase in headcount from 650 to 720. 
Work was also done to improve the 
efficiency of fleets and quarry operations, 
as part of an overall plan across Nass 
Corporation to integrate activities and 
improve workflow. New technologies 
were incorporated into processes to 
achieve this. 2019 will see a further focus 
on efficiencies as the number of projects 
to be undertaken is expected to slow.

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  
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Nass Landscapes

/
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2018 was an important year of 
expansion for Nass Electrical as it 
entered new business areas such as 
extra high voltage transmission cables 
and solar power. The Company also 
became authorised to carry out term 
contract work for transmission works, 
including excavation and backfilling for 
electrical cables, which makes Nass 
Electrical a one-stop shop for electrical 
needs and gives the Company a 
competitive advantage.

Nass Electrical’s team grew from 190 to 
240 during 2018, reflecting the 
increased business opportunities 
available to the Company. It also 
continued to invest in training and 
development for its staff; two individuals 
received 11 kV authorisation certificates 
from EWA and one engineer secured a 
license to carry out solar works.

During the year, Nass Electrical 
received ISO 14001 accreditation and 
BS OHSAS 18001  –  2007. The outlook 
for 2019 is positive as the Company 
continues work on ongoing projects 
such as Diyar Al Muharraq and Marassi 
Al Bahrain.
 
Nass Electrical is a registered Class 1 
certificate holder with Bahrain’s 
Electricity and Water Authority (EWA), 
and a leader in the Design, Supply, 
Installation and Commissioning of a 
wide variety of electrical and 
instrumentation contracting, with a 
primary focus on the infrastructure and 
construction sectors. Nass Electrical is 
one of the few electrical contractors in 
the Kingdom of Bahrain that is 
specialised in the laying of 66kV & 
400kV cables and LV & HV cable 
distribution. 

Nass Electrical
Contracting Co. W.L.L.

Nass Mechanical is one of the major 
Mechanical, and Structural Engineering 
Contractor in the region. 

The Company is engaged in Shutdown 
and Maintenance Projects, EPC of 
Packaged Unit, General Plant 
Construction, Heavy Engineering and 
Process Equipment Manufacturing, as 
well as, Refractory and Insulation, and 
Industrial Painting Projects in the 
Kingdom of Bahrain, as well as the GCC 
countries.

Nass Mechanical Contracting
Co. W.L.L
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PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
• Delmon Ready Mixed Concrete and Products Co. W.L.L.

• Delmon Precast Co. W.L.L.

 

 
Established in 1973 by Abdulla Ahmed 
Nass as Bahrain’s first readymix 
concrete producer, the Company has 
been instrumental in some of the 
country's most prestigious projects, 
helping to shape the nation's soaring 
skyline. Delmon Readymix has ten 
batching plants in its portfolio with a 
combined production capacity of over 
860 cubic metres of concrete per hour. It 
believes above all in investing in its 
people through ongoing training and 
development to create a world-class 
workforce which delivers exceptional 
quality for its customers.

Despite the downturn in Bahrain's 
construction market, Delmon Readymix 

went against the grain, finishing the year 
with record results. A combination of 
factors, such as reduced cash flow,  a 
new planning tax, and the anticipated 
introduction of VAT in 2019, resulted in 
fewer than usual new construction 
projects in the Kingdom. Nevertheless, 
Delmon Readymix continued to build on 
its success from the previous year, 
undertaking large projects such as the 
ALBA Potline 6 project and the 
ALBA-Nuwaidrat interchange.

To meet the demand, the Company 
focused on maintaining sufficient 
equipment to serve all their customers to 
the exacting high standards they have 
come to expect. In 2018 the Company 
continued to develop its North ALBA 
site, which was established in July 2017 
to serve all upcoming projects in the 
Southern Governorate, particularly 
BAPCO and Durrat. The site, Delmon 
Readymix's third after Salmabad and 

Hidd, gives the Company a strategic 
advantage in the Governorate by cutting 
down transit times.

 Looking ahead into 2019, Delmon 
Readymix remains committed to its 
mission of consistently delivering high 
quality products and being the supplier 
of choice for concrete in the Kingdom. 
The Company is ideally situated to 
support the upcoming BAPCO 
expansion project which, in terms of 
concrete requirements, will be the 
biggest single project in the Kingdom 
since the King Fahad Causeway. The 
Company is also looking forward to a 
number of real estate and road projects 
in the second half of the year.

Delmon Ready Mixed
Concrete and Products
Co. W.L.L
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Delmon Precast Co. W.L.L.

Established in 1985 as a separate 
Company within Nass The Group, 
Delmon Precast has built a niche for 
itself as a leading manufacturer of high 
quality, custom-made products for civil 
engineering and building applications in 
the Bahraini market. The Company’s 
extensive portfolio of products includes 
decorative architectural panels in 
precast concrete and GRC, heavy duty 
reinforced concrete products, 
pre-stressed long span double T units, 
bridge beams, hollow core slabs, 
reinforced concrete pipes, precast 
walls, septic tanks, precast cladding 
panels, manholes, foundation bases, 
and various small products such as 
kerbs and paving slabs.

2018 proved to be another positive year 
for Delmon Precast, which saw 
improvements in profitability and overall 
performance. Despite difficulties in the 
hollowcore market due to a lack of social 
housing project launches this year, the 
business was boosted by precast 
supplies to the ALBA Potline 6 project. 

At the end of July, the Company 
completed a highly successful joint 
venture with Nass Contracting, which 
supplied large precast units to two main 
pot lines in the ALBA project. A 
temporary precast facility was set up 
north of the ALBA site to serve the 
project, producing over 4,100 individual 
units, some weighing over 50 tonnes. 
In 2018 Delmon Precast, with support 
from Tamkeen, further invested in its 

production facilities and expanded its 
pressed product plant and internal 
mould fabrication facilities. This will 
improve productivity, enhance product 
quality and help the Company maintain 
its position as the supplier of choice for 
its longstanding customers.
  
2019 sees the Company continue to 
deliver on its ongoing government 
housing projects, 400 kV Transmission 
projects, infrastructure works and 
boundary walls.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

In May 2018, saw Nass Corporation 
acquire %60 of United Dredging 
Company (UDC), rebranding it as Nass 
Dredging Company (NDC). The new 
entity will play a major role in the vertical 
integration and strategic positioning of 
Nass Corporation as a whole, 
strengthening the group’s ability to 
participate in major international 
projects outside its core Bahrain and 
GCC markets. NDC is working on 
improving the efficiencies of the 
operational assets it aquired from its 
predecessor, which will play a major role 
in helping to reduce the shortage of 
sand supply to the construction industry 
in Bahrain. 

NDC’s activities for the year consisted of 
establishing its brand identity and 
internal and external procedures, 
including a shift towards a higher quality 
customer base. Although it met its sales 
targets, NDC finished the year in the red 
as forecasted. It is expecting to turn a 
profit in early 2019 following the high 
cost upgrading of its two dredges to the 
standards needed to realise its vision to 
become the first wholly Bahraini owned 
international dredging company.

NDC forged a key partnership with 
Illinois, US-based Great Lakes Dredge 
and Dock Company, with which it will be 
undertaking large scale international 
dredging jobs. The partnership is made 
more efficient by the fact that the two 
companies have compatible vessels, 
with interchangeable fittings and 
pipelines.

Another major development was the 
acquisition and deployment of a Damen 
DOP pump, a land based dredging 
pump that adds yet another business 
line to NDC, allowing it to take on beach, 
sea bed and harbor clean ups. NDC 
expects to be able to offer this service to 
Mina Salman Port Area, Bahrain Steel 
and the Naval base, among others.

In the coming year, NDC will focus on 
further improving the quality of its 
operations and equipment to 
international standards, including ISO 
certification for quality, safety and 
document control (ISO 1800 ,1400 and 
9001, respectively). The focus will 
continue to be on providing some of the 
highest quality sand in Bahrain, 
strengthening efficiencies and 
optimising production.
 

The Bapco refinery project is expected 
to be a major source of revenue. As the 
only dredging company with a facility in 
Askar, NDC expects to supply the 
largest portion of the million cubic 
meters of sand needed thanks to the 
unique economies of scale it can 
provide.
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MANAGEMENT 
TEAM
Yousif Ahmed Isa Nass
General Manager  
(Administration & Human Resources)
Nass Corporation B.S.C.
Nass Ice and Water Plant &
Nass Sand Processing Plant

Ian Edward Boys 

Commercial Manager
Nass Contracting Co. WLL

Nigel Hector
General Manager
Nass Contracting Co. WLL

Jamal Moh'd Nass
General Manager – Central Garage
Nass Contracting Co. WLL

John Mottram
General Manager
DRMC and DPC

Jatinder Singh Gill
General Manager
Nass Electrical Contracting Co. WLL

Koshy P. Mathew 
General Manager
Nass Foods

Sean Winston Hickinson
Regional General Manager
Nass Scafform

Gian Franco Stefanoni
General Manager
Nass Industrial Services
Nass Mechanical Contracting Co. WLL

Gerard Hutton
General Manager  
Nass Asphalt

Ahmed Saber
Manager
Nass Commercial

David Mckay
General Manager 

Nass Logistics & Procurement

Srinath Prabhu
Manager Finance & Company Secretary
Nass Corporation B.S.C.

Ramesh Panigrahi
Manager Audit & Compliance
Nass Corporation B.S.C.

Avinash Hujband
Manager Due Diligence
Nass Corporation B.S.C.

Yasser Al Attar
Manager Legal Department
Nass Corporation B.S.C.
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1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY 

Good Corporate Governance practices are significant in creating and sustaining shareholder value and ensuring appropriate 
disclosure and transparency. Nass Corporation B.S.C.’s (‘the Company’) Corporate Governance Policy provides the framework 
for the principles of effective Corporate Governance standards across the Company.  

The Board of Directors (the Board) is committed to implementing robust Corporate Governance practices and continuous 
review and adherence to strong corporate governance practices to help enhance compliance levels according to international 
standards and best practice. 

Nass Corporation B.S.C. shall continue its endeavor to enhance shareholders value, protect their interests and defend their 
rights by practicing the pursuit of excellence in corporate life. The Company shall continuously strive to best serve the interests 
of its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees and public at large. 

The management is committed to implement procedures and processes to reflect and support the Board approved Corporate 
Governance framework to ensure the highest standards of Corporate Governance throughout the Company.  

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DEVELOPMENTS DURING THE YEAR 

All directors of the Company were elected by the shareholders of the Company in the AGM held on March 28, 2018. After 
March 28, 2018 no director position became vacant and thus no new directors were elected or stood for re -election.  

3. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION  

The existing share structure of the Company consists of only ordinary shares and there are no different classes of ordinary 
shares. As on December 31, 2018, the Company had issued 220,000,000 ordinary shares, each with a nominal value of BD 
0.100 per share. All the shares are fully paid. 

Shareholders are invited by the Chairman to attend the AGM. The Chairman and other Directors attend the AGM and are 
available to answer any questions. 

The Annual General Ordinary Meetings will held on  March 28, 2019. 

  
ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE   
Nass Corporation BSC 
Manama – Kingdom of Bahrain 
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Major shareholders of the Company (Names of the shareholders holding 5% or more) as on December 31, 2018 are as follows:- 

S.No. Name of Shareholder Number of Shares % of 
Holdings 

Name of the natural person, 
the final beneficiary 

Statement of shareholders' equity as of 31 / 12 / 2018 (individuals, corporate, government or organizations) to be classified 
as follows:  

SS..NNoo..
SShhaarreehhoollddeerr  
CCllaassssiiffiiccaattiioonn 

SShhaarreehhoollddiinngg  %%  

IInnddiivviidduuaallss  CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  oorr  
OOrrggaanniizzaattiioonnss  TToottaall  

1 Local 66.96% 12.09% 0.02% 79.07% 

2 Arab 16.81% 3.45% - 20.26% 

3 Foreign 0.46% 0.21% - 0.67%  
TToottaall 8844..2233%% 1155..7755%% 00..0022%% 110000..0000%% 

Description of how shareholders are distributed according to their respective shareholding as at 31 / 12 / 2018 as follows: 

SS..NNoo SShhaarreehhoollddiinngg  ((sshhaarree))  NNuummbbeerr  ooff  
SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  

NNuummbbeerr  ooff  sshhaarreess  
hheelldd  

SShhaarreehhoollddiinngg  %%  

1 <50,000 7,814 13,841,267 6.29% 

2 50,000 to 500,000 125 20,823,896 9.47% 

3 500,000 to 5,000,000 42 69,497,721 31.59% 

4 >5,000,000 7 115,837,116 52.65% 

 TTOOTTAALL  7,988 220,000,000 100 

1 Mr. Sameer Abdulla Nass 18,810,000 8.55 Mr. Sameer Abdulla Nass 

2 Mr. Sami Abdulla Nass 18,810,000 8.55 Mr. Sami Abdulla Nass 

3 Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass 18,810,000 8.55 Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass 

4 Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass 18,810,000 8.55 Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass 

5 Mr. Fawzi Abdulla Nass 18,810,000 8.55 Mr. Fawzi Abdulla Nass 

6 Abdul Rahman Saleh Al Rajhi 
& Partners Co Ltd  

16,603,776 7.55 Abdul Rahman Saleh Al Rajhi Family 
members  

(Cont’d)
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4. COMPANY’S BOARD, DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT 

4.1. Board Procedure 
The Board procedure is defined in the Charter of the Board. The Company has a practice of circulation of agenda and other 
supporting documents well in advance to enable the directors to deliberate and decide on all matters listed in the agenda to 
constantly enhance the performance of the Company. 

4.2. Board and Directors’ Responsibilities 
The specific responsibilities of the Board include: 

1. Monitoring the overall business performance; 
2. Monitoring the performance of  executive management to ensure that executives are compensated fairly;  
3. Monitoring management performance and succession plan for Senior Management; 
4. Accurate preparation of the quarterly and annual consolidated financial statements and ensure that financial 

statements are free from errors and frauds; 
5. Monitoring conflicts of interest and preventing abusive related party transactions; 
6. Convening and preparing for the shareholders meetings; 
7. Recommending dividends to shareholders and ensure its execution; 
8. Adapting, implementing and monitoring compliance with the Company’s Code of Business Conduct; 
9. Disclosure of financial information to the Government Authorities and the public within the stipulated time;  

10. Reviewing the Company’s objectives and policies relating to social responsibilities; and 
11. Overseeing the direction and management of the company in accordance with Commercial Companies Law and 

other Rules and Regulations issued by the Government of Bahrain. 

4.3. Material Transactions that require the Board approval 
The following material transactions require the Board of Directors review, evaluation and approval: 

1. The Company strategy; 
2. The annual budget, capital expenditure budget, major contracts, diversification plans/divestment.;  
3. The financial statements; 
4. Major resource allocations and capital investments; and 
5. Management responsibilities and training, development and succession plan for Senior Management.  

(Cont’d)
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4.4. Director’s profiles (Directorships of other Boards) 
The following members of the Board of Directors are also the member of other listed companies in the Kingdom of Bahrain: 

S.No. Name of Director Designation Name of the Company 

1 Mr. Jamal A Al -Hazeem Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

1. Takaful International BSC 

2 Dr. Mustafa Al Sayed Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

1. Seef Properties BSC 

3 Mr. Hisham S Al Saie Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

1. Investcorp Bank BSC 

 

4.5. Status of Directorships and Board Composition 

Name of Director 

Type 
(executive, 
non-
executive or 
independent) 

Experience Qualification 

The period of his 
term as a director 
of the Company 
starting from the 
date of his first 
election or 
appointment 

Positions in 
any other key 
regulatory, 
government 
organisations 

MMrr..  SSaammeeeerr  AAbbdduullllaa  
NNaassss  Executive 39 Bachelor of 

Science 

  
01-01-2005 

Chairman of 
Bahrain Chamber 
of Commerce & 

Industry

MMrr..  SSaammii  AAbbdduullllaa  NNaassss  Executive 35 
Bachelor of 
Business 

Administration 
01-01-2005 

MMrr..  AAddeell  AAbbdduullllaa  NNaassss  Executive 30 
Masters in 

Business 
Administration 

01-01-2005 

MMrr..  GGhhaazzii  AAbbdduullllaa  NNaassss  Executive 27 BSc – Civil 
Engineering 01-01-2005 

MMrr..  FFaawwzzii  AAbbdduullllaa  NNaassss  Executive 24 Diploma
Mechanical Engineering 01-01-2005 

MMrr..  BBaasshhaarr  SSaammeeeerr  NNaass  ss  Executive 11 
Graduate in 
Construction 
Management 

23-09-2013 

MMrr..  HHeemmaanntt  JJoosshhii  Executive 37 
B.com, MBA, FCMA, 
AICMA, FCA & LLB 19-03-2015 

MMrr..  JJaammaall  AA  AAll  --HHaazzeeeem  Non-Executive & 
Independent 

31 
Accountant 

Certified Public
- USA 01-01-2005 

DDrr..  MMuussttaaffaa  AAll  SSaayyeedd  Non-Executive & 
Independent 41 

M.Sc in 
Industrial Management 

PHD 
16-03-2010 

The Secretary General 
of Royal Charity

Organisation
 

MMrr..  HHiisshhaamm  SS  AAll  SSaaiiee  Non-Executive & 
Independent 

21 
Master of 
Business 

Administration
01-01-2005  

4 Mr. Bashar Sameer Nass Non-Executive & 
Independent Director

 

1. Solidarity Bahrain BSC 

(Cont’d)
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4.6. Appointment & Termination / Resignation of Directors 
Directors are elected for 3-year term. Elections take place in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Associat ion of 
the Company and the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law. There is no maximum age limit at which a Director must retire from 
the Board. Each Director’s term of appointment expires, pursuant to the terms of his Letter of Appointment and/or the provisions 
of the law.  The shareholders appointed the current board of directors of the Company on March 28, 2018. 

4.7. Induction and Training of Directors 
The Company has a formal induction program in place, which is designed for each new Director. The induction progra m 
includes i) an introductory pack containing, amongst other things, the Company Overview, Organisation Chart, Terms of 
Reference of the Board and Board Committees and key policies; ii) presentations on significant financial, strategic and risk 
issues; and iii) orientation meetings with key management as may be required. All continuing Directors are inv ited to attend 
orientation meetings. 

4.8. Directors Ownership of Company’s shares 

S.No. Name of Director Type of Shares 
Number of 

Shares 
% of shares held 

1 Mr. Sameer Abdulla Nass Equity Shares 18,810,000 8.55 

2 Mr. Sami Abdulla Nass Equity Shares 18,810,000 8.55 

3 Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass Equity Shares 18,810,000 8.55 

4 Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass Equity Shares 18,810,000 8.55 

5 Mr. Fawzi Abdulla Nass Equity Shares 18,810,000 8.55 

6 Dr. Mustafa Al Sayed Equity Shares 136,430 0.06 

7 Mr. Bashar Sameer Nass Equity Shares 100,000 0.05 

4.9. Director’s Trading of Shares during the year 
During the year, none of the Board Member neither sold nor purchased any shares in the Company.  

(Cont’d)
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4.10. Board Meetings 
The Company should hold a minimum of four Board meetings during each year. During the year 2018 five Board meetings were
held. The following table summarizes the information about member’s attendance in the Board of Directors meetings: 

Meetings of Board of Directors held in 2018: 

Name of Director Business Title % Attended 

Mr. Sameer Abdulla 
Nass  

Chairman X 
 

80% 

Mr. Sami Abdulla Nass 

Deputy 
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director 

 100%
 

Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass  Director - 
Finance

  100% 

Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass Director X     80% 

Mr. Fawzi Abdulla Nass Director      100% 

Mr. Bashar Sameer Nass Director     100% 

Mr. Hemant Joshi  Director      100% 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem  
Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 
    100% 

Mr. Hisham Al -Saie 
Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 
     100% 

Dr. Mustafa Al Sayed 
Non-Executive 
Independent 

Director 
    100% 

(Cont’d)
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4.11. Remuneration For Board of Directors And Management 
Article 188 of the Commercial Companies Law No.21 of 2001 explains the method of payment of remuneration to the directors. 
The remuneration policy is based on attendance fees and basic fees paid to the members of the Board of Direc tors. 

For the (last) year 2017 attendance fee of BD. 182,250/- and BD 92,000/- was paid to the directors towards basic remunerations. 

For the year 2018 attendance fee of BD. 182,250/- was paid and the proposed remunerations of  BD 92,000/-to be paid to the
directors will be presented at the annual general meeting for approval.  

Description of sitting fees paid to the directors for attending the Board’s committees for the financial year 2018 is as follows: 

S.No. Name 
Sitting fees paid for attendance of the Board’s committees 

Name of committee Sitting fees amount Number of  
meetings 

1 Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass  Group Tender Committee BD. 500 per siting 2 

2 Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass Group Tender Committee BD. 500 per siting 2 

    

     

     

7 Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Remuneration Committee BD. 750 per siting 3 

8

9

10

11

 Mr. Hemant Joshi Remuneration Committee BD. 750 per siting 3 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem Audit Committee BD. 750 per siting 7 

Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Audit Committee BD. 750 per siting 7 

Mr. Hemant Joshi Audit Committee BD. 750 per siting 7 

-3 Mr. Jamal Al Hazeem Group Tender Committee BD. 500 per siting 2

4 Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Group Tender Committee BD. 500 per siting 1

5 Mr. Hemant Joshi Group Tender Committee BD. 500 per siting 2

6 Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem Remuneration Committee BD. 750 per siting 3

(Cont’d)
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4.12. Management 
The following table summarises information about the profession, designation/business title, experience in years and 
qualifications of Senior Management: 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of members of 
senior management Designation Experience 

in years Qualification 

1
 

Yusuf Ahmed Nass
 General Manager – HR & 

Administration, Nass Sand Plant & 
Nass Ice Plant 

34 BSc- Civil Engineering 

2 Nigel Barrie Hector General Manager – Nass Contracting 37 Higher National Diploma 
in Civil Engineering 

3 Jamal Mohammad Nass General Manager – Central Garage 30 Bachelor in Computer 
Engineering 

4 Jonathan Charles Mottram General Manager – DRMC & DPC 17 B.Eng. Mining (Hons) 

5

 

Sean Winston Hickinson

 

Regional General Manager –

 

Nass 
Scafform

 34

 Diploma in English 
Literature and 
Sociology, Level 3 
Advanced Scaffolder 

6 Jatinder Singh Gill 
 

General Manager – Nass Electrical 34 BSc.  Electrical 
Engineering 

7
 

Gerard Martin Hutton
 

General Manager –
 
Nass Asphalt

 
45

 MSc.  in Construction 
Project Management 

8 Dr. Koshy Mathew General Manager – Nass Foods 48 M.A. M.T, MBA, DD 

9 Gian Franco Stefanoni General Manager – Nass Industrial 
Services 25

 Diploma-Civil Eng. 
Bachelors’ Degree 
Second Level in  Mech. 
Eng. 

     
NHD Civil Eng. 

11 David Charles Mckay General Manager – Nass Logistics & 
Procurement 

35 Secondary School 

The remuneration paid to Senior Management during the year was as follows: 

Senior Management - Cost Amount 
(BD) ‘000 

Salaries, allowances, inclusive of all costs 1,126 

Employees’ end of service benefits 93 

4.13. Code of Conduct/ Code of Ethics 
The Company has engaged consultant to draft the Code of Ethics Policy which would be in place during the year 2019 once 
approved by the Board.  

1 Lawrence du Preez General Manager – Nass Dredging 300

(Cont’d)
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6. COMMITTEES 

The Committees are constituted by the Board for the good corporate governance. Scope of roles and responsibilities are 
clearly defined in the Charters of respective Committee. Committees put forward suggestions and recommendation to the 
Board as and when deemed necessary. Minutes of the Committee meetings are circulated to members of the Board 
periodically. The Board constantly evaluates the composition of the committees to comply with the requirements of Law and 
for the successful functioning of the Company. 

The following table summarises the information about the Board Committees, their members and objectives:- 

6.1. AUDIT COMMITTEE  

Sl. No. Members Independent/ 
Non-independent 

1 Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem Non-Executive Independent Director 

2 Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Non-Executive Independent Director 

3 Mr. Hemant Joshi Executive Director 

 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee comprises of 3 directors. The Charter of 
the Audit Committee specifies the roles and responsibilities assigned to the Committee. 

Competences of the Audit Committee Members: 

1- Review the company’s accounting and financial practices. 

2- Review the credibility of the company’s financial control, internal control and financial statements.  

3- Review and approve the company’s financial statements before presenting the same to the Board. 

4- Discuss the significant accounting and financial policies and reporting issues for the financial year. 

5- Review the company's compliance with legal requirements. 

6- Consider and recommend to the Board the appointment, resignation or dismissal of an external auditor, determine 
the audit fees and compensations and oversee the auditor’s work. 

7- Discuss the significant observations of external and internal Auditors and the response from the management. 

8- Review the company's risk management and internal audit functions. 

9- Ensure existence of appropriate policies, procedures, systems, internal controls and guidelines in the Company. 

10- Deal with any concerns arising from the ‘whistleblower’ program adopted by the Board to allow for concerns to be 
raised confidentially. 

(Cont’d)
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The Company should hold minimum of four Audit Committee meetings during each year. During the year, seven meetings of 
the Audit Committee were held. The following table summarises the information about the members attendance in the Audit 
Committee meetings:

Members % Attended 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem 100% 

Mr. Hisham Al-Saie 100% 

Mr. Hemant Joshi 100% 

During the year, total fees paid to the members of the Audit Committee was BD 15,750/-. 

6.2 Nomination, Corporate Governance & Safety Committee: 

Sl. 
No. 

Members Independent/ 
Non-independent 

1 Dr. Mustafa Al Sayed Non-Executive Independent Director 

2 Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem Non-Executive Independent Director 

3 Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Non-Executive Independent Director 

4 Mr. Hemant Joshi Executive Director 

Dr. Mustafa Al Sayed is the Chairman of the Nomination, Corporate Governance & Safety Committee. The Nomination, 
Corporate Governance & Safety Committee comprises of four directors. The Charter of the Nomination, Corporate Governance

 & Safety  Committee specifies the roles and responsibilities assigned to the Committee. 

Competences of the Nomination, Corporate Governance & Safety Committee Members: 

1- Ensure the Company’s practices conform to its corporate governance policy and is al igned to good governance 
practices. 

2- Review and ensure adequacy and integrity of the Company's internal control and management information systems, 
including systems for compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

3- Ensure the Company adheres to the highest standards of ethics and corporate behavior. 

4- Ensure appropriate financial planning, operating and reporting framework as well as a risk management framework 
is established. 

5- Monitor the adequacy and implementation of the Company's Corporate Governance Framework. 

6- Providing the Board with reports and recommendations based on its findings in the performance of its duties. 

7- Review the structure of the Board, periodically evaluate the directors’ performance and make recommendations to 
the Board on the necessary changes that should be made to address weaknesses to achieve the company’s interests. 

8- Make recommendations to the Board from time to time on changes that the committee believes to be desirable in the 
management structure or in the job descriptions. 

(Cont’d)
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9- Ensure that adequate policies and procedures are in place for the evaluation of the performance of executive 
management. 

10- Develop succession plans of senior management before the plans is presented to the Board for approval. 

The Company should hold minimum of two Nomination, Corporate Governance & Safety Committee meetings during each 
year. During the year, one meeting of the  Nomination, Corporate Governance & Safety Committee was held. The following 
table summarises the information about the members attendance in the Nomination Committee meetings:  

Members 13-11-2018 % Attended 

Dr. Mustafa Al Sayed 100% 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem 100% 

Mr. Hisham Al-Saie 100% 

Mr. Hemant Joshi 100% 

During the year, total fees paid to the members of the Nomination, Corporate Governance & Safety Committee was BD NIL. 

6.3 Remuneration Committee: 

Sl. No. Members Independent/ 
Non-independent 

1 Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem Non-Executive Independent Director 

2 Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Non-Executive Independent Director 

3 Mr. Hemant Joshi Executive Director 

 

Mr. Hisham Al-Saie is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee comprises of three 
directors. The Charter of the Remuneration Committee specifies the roles and responsibilities assigned to the Committee. 

(Cont’d)
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Competences of the Remuneration Committee Members: 

1- Consider and make specific recommendations to the Board on both the remuneration policy and the remuneration 
package for the chief executive officer and other senior officers. 

2- Review the remuneration & sitting fees of the directors and making recommendations to the Board about their 
decision. 

The Company should hold minimum of two Remuneration Committee meetings during each year. During the year, three 
meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held. The following table summarises the information about the members 
attendance in the Remuneration Committee meetings: 

Members 25-01-2018 13-06-2018 03-10-2018 % Attended 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem 100% 

Mr. Hisham Al-Saie 100% 

Mr. Hemant Joshi 100% 

 

During the year, total fees paid to the members of the Remuneration Committee was BD 6,750/-. 

(Cont’d)
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6.4 Group Tender Committee 

Group Tender Committee consists following members: 

1 Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass  Executive Director 

2 Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass Executive Director 

3 Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem Non-Executive Independent Director 

4 Mr. Hisham Al-Saie Non-Executive Independent Director 

5 Mr. Hemant Joshi Executive Director 

 

SI. No. Members
Independent/
Non-independent

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem is the Chairman of the Group Tender Committee. The Group Tender Committee comprises of 5 directors. 
The Charter of the Group Tender Committee specifies the roles and responsibilities assigned to the Committee.  

Competences of the Group Tender Committee Members: 

1 Establishing Intra-group pricing framework covering: 

• Bilateral pricing between two Group entities for regular business dealings; 

• Bid for special Tenders / contracts (below the threshold limit set by the Board);  

• Bid for special Tenders / contracts (above the threshold limit set by the Board).  

2 Review and recommend the threshold limit to the Board for bidding process by any Group Entity; 

3 Set the ground rules for engaging any other third party other than the Group Company; 

4 Participate in the pricing process for tenders or bids of over the threshold limit set by the Board. 

5 The Committee shall periodically review with the management of group entities, internal auditor regarding the intra-
group pricing policy matters and take corrective action if required. 

(Cont’d)
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During the year, two meetings of the Group Tender Committee were held. The following table summarises the information about 
the members attendance in the Group Tender Committee meetings: 

MMeemmbbeerrss  0033--1100--22001188  1188--1111--22001188  %%  AAtttteennddeedd   

Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass  100% 

Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass 100% 

Mr. Jamal Al-Hazeem 100% 

Mr. Hisham Al-Saie X 50% 

Mr. Hemant Joshi 100% 

During the year, total fees paid to the members of the Remuneration Committee was BD 4,500/-. 

(Cont’d)
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance Code 

The Board and the Company’s employees are expected to maintain the highest level of corporate ethics and personal behavior. 
The Company has established the Code which provides an ethical and legal framework for all employees in the conduct of its 
business. The Code also defines how the Company relates to its employees, shareholders and the community in which the 
Company operates. 

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code and a Whistleblower Policy to monitor compliance with the ethical requirements 
of the Code. The Code provides clear directions on conducting business internationally, interacting with the Government 
entities, communities, business partners and general workplace behavior having regard to the best practice of corporate 
governance models and ethics. The Code also sets out a behavioral framework for all employees in the context of a wide range 
of ethical and legal issues. 

Compliances with the corporate governance code 

Management and Board of Directors ensure compliance with corporate governance framework and guidelines to e nsure 
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and that it did not take note of any non-compliance during the year ended 
2018. 

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OFFICER 

During the year as per MOIC & T requirement the Company had appointed Corporate Governance Officer.  The details of 
Corporate Governance Officer is as follows: 

Name Qualification Date of Appointment Contact Details 

Ramesh Panigrahi B.A. (Hons) Economics, 
AICMA, CMA and CPA from 
AICPA, USA 

2018 Telephone No. 1772 5560 
Mobile No. 3999 2301 
Email id: ramesh@aanass.net 
compliance@nasscorporation.com 

9. IRREGULARITIES COMMITTED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

There was an irregularity involving a division employee and supplier and necessary legal actions was initiated against the 
concerned parties. 

(Cont’d)
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10. EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

Fees and charges for the audit services provided by the external auditor during the year 2018, in addition to a description of 
the auditor’s years of service as the Company’s external auditor is as follows: 

Name of the audit firm KPMG Fakhro 

Years of service as the Company’s external auditor 13 years 

Name of the partner in charge of the Company’s audit Jalil Al Ali 

The partner’s years of service as the partner in charge of the 
Company’s audit 

3 years

60,225

18,896

 

Total audit fees for the financial statements for the year 2018 
(in BD) 

 

Other special fees and charges for non-audit services other 
than auditing the financial statements for the year 2018 (in 
BD) if any. In the absence of such fees, this shall be 
expressly stated 

 

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The company has appointed a consultant to develop Conflict of Interest Policy which would be in place during the year 2019 
once approved by the Board.  

 

(Cont’d)
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions are carried out at arm’s length basis and approved by the management of th e Company. No 
employee or director or member of executive management can trade in the shares with the material information which is not 
made public. 

Below are the details of the related party transactions: 

Related Party Transactions ( Income) for the year 2018  

S.No. Name of Related Parties Nature of Transaction Figures in 
BD'000 

1 Nass Contrack JV Manpower,  equipment hire and other services to  Joint 
venture 2,037 

2
 

Abdulla Ahmed Nass & Sons Co. W.L.L.
 

Supply of goods, manpower and other services 321
 3 Gulf City Cleaning Sale of equipment, spares, consumables and services 274 

4 Abdulla Nass Sons KSA Manpower hire and services 112 

5 Nass Directors & Nass Family Supply of goods and services 81 

6 SNME Supply of goods, hire of manpower and other services 72 

7 Abdulla Nass Partners- KSA Supply of spares and consumables 35 

8 Abrasive Technology KSA Supply of spares and consumables 30 

9 Dona Marine Hire of equipment, goods and services 27 

10 Other Related Parties Supply of goods,  other services, hire of equipment etc. 116 

  Total 3,105 

(Cont’d)
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Related Party Transactions ( Purchases ) for the year 2018 
 

S.No. Name of Related Parties Nature of Transaction Figures in 
BD'000      

1 UCC Purchase of cement           3,884  

2 Sarens Nass Middle East Hire of cranes and equipment           2,241  
3 Dona Marine Hire of tug and barge for transportation of materials           2,118  

4
 

Bahrain Building Chemicals
 

Purchase of construction chemicals, fly ash and 
micro silica           

1,947 
 

5
 

Abdulla Ahmed Nass & Sons
 

Hire of land, labour camp, staff accommodation, 
and other services           

1,795 
 

6 Abdulla Ahmed Nass & Sons Executive management contract services           1,560  

7 Allied Car Rental SPC Hire of vehicles           1,068  

8 Nass Directors  Hire of land, camp, staff accommodation               832  
9 BBT Purchase of aggregates               697  
10 Abdulla Nass Partners- KSA Hire of manpower, equipment and agency services               410  

11
 

Gulf City Cleaning
 

Cleaning , waste removal services and supply of 
manure               

380 
 

12 Abdulla Nass Sons KSA Sub-contract works               166  

13 Nass Marine Hire of manpower, equipment and services               182  
14

 
Other Related Parties

 
Supply of goods,  other services, hire of equipment 
etc.               

267 
 

    Total         17,547   

50

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS 

The Company is committed to provide relevant and timely information to its shareholders, investors and regulators in 
accordance with its continuous disclosure obligations defined in the Code. Information is communicated to shareholders and 
regulators through the distribution of the Company’s Annual Report and other information releases about the significant matters 
through the Company’s website in a timely manner. The Board Secretary / Corporate Governance Officer is responsible for 
communications with the shareholders and regulators ensuring that the Company meets its continuous disclosures obligations 
as defined in the Code. 

(Cont’d)
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14. EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE 

The shareholders evaluate the performance of the Board of Directors and absolve them from liability  in the Annual General 
Meeting.  

The Board has introduced annual performance evaluations of Board, Audit committee, individual directors and executive 
management in accordance with their respective terms of reference and appointment agreements with the aim of improving 
the effectiveness and contributions towards the Company.  

The evaluation is designed to determine whether the Board, its committees, individual  directors and executive management 
continues to be capable of providing the high level judgment required and are informed and up to date with the business and 
its goals and understand the context within which it operates. 

15. CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARDS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT 
PRESERVATION 

The company annually contributes to donation and charity fund in order to support these activities. The company has appointed 
consultants to develop Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which would be in place during the year 2019 once approved 
by the Board. 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE 

Principle Non-
compliant 

Partially 
Compliant 

Fully 
Compliant 

Explanation in case of non-
compliance 

Principle 1:  
 
The Company shall be headed by 
an effective, qualified and expert 
board. 
 

  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

As per CG Code Chairman of the 
Board shall be a independent 
Director. However, the position of 
Chairman is held by the Founder 
member, whose experience, vision 
and continuous guidance has 
enhanced the company’s stature and 
his contribution and support to 
management and shareholders 
benefit is extremely

 
necessary.

 
Principle 2:  
The directors and executive 
management shall have full loyalty 
to the company. 

    

(Cont’d)
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Principle 3:  
The Board shall have rigorous 
controls for financial audit and 
reporting, internal control, and 
compliance with law. 
 

   

Principle 4:  
The Company shall have effective 
procedures for appointment, 
training, and evaluation of the 
directors. 
 

   

Principle 5:  
The Company shall remunerate 
directors and senior officers fairly 
and responsibly. 
 

   

Principle 6:  
The Board shall establish a clear 
and efficient management 
structure for the Company and 
define the job titles, authority, roles 
and responsibilities. 
 

   

Principle 7:  
The Company shall communicate 
with shareholders, encourage their 
participation, and respect their 
rights. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Principle 8:  
The Company shall disclose its 
corporate governance. 
 

   

Principle 9:  
The Board shall ensure the 
integrity of the financial statements 
submitted to shareholders through 
appointment of external auditors. 
 

   

Principle 10:  
The Company shall seek through 
social responsibility to exercise its 
role as a good citizen. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
CSR policy is being developed and 
will be in place during 2019 once 
approved by Board. 

 

 

 

(Cont’d)
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December 2018 is summarized below:
BD ‘000

20172018

Revenue 182,770

Total assets

Financial highlights

Appropriations

158,629

Total equity 64,343

and  depreciation 12,306

4,262

173,404

157,965

62,984

10,099

3,525

Transfer to statutory reserve 426 353

Proposed dividend 1,075 1,075

Donations and charity reserve 30 30

Dividend

Consolidation of Accounts
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To,
All our esteemed shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our 
pleasure and privilege to present to you the 
14th Annual Report and Audited Annual 
Accounts of Nass Corporation B.S.C. for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2018. The 
annual report includes the consolidated 
financial results of Nass Corporation B.S.C. 
and subsidiaries (the “Group”).

The company values the support of the shareholders over the 
years and is committed in its efforts to add value for their 
investment. We are pleased to inform you that your Directors 
have recommended for the  financial year ended 31 
December 2018, a dividend of 5 fils per share of 100 fils 
each, on its  215,076,840 Ordinary shares (out of total issued 
shares of 220,000,000, the Company is holding 4,923,160 
shares as treasury shares). Upon approval at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, the said dividend will be paid to all 
those members whose names appear in the Register of 
members as on the day of the Annual General Meeting viz.28 
March 2019.

Nass Corporation B.S.C. has adopted all of the new and 
revised standards and interpretations issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the 
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 
(IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and 
effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 
2018.

GCC countries are playing a prominent role in stimulating the 
economic growth. Sustained increase in oil price in 2018 has 
driven an economic recovery in the region which is narrowing 
fiscal deficit and boosting public spending.  In addition, 
reforms such as VAT, rolling back of subsidy, business 
environment and labour market reforms were taken to 
strengthen economic conditions in the region.   However, 
challenges in the construction industry continued with 
competitive bids, increase in input costs, rolling down of 
subsidies on fuel, power, and increase in financing costs 
building pressure on the profit margin. The narrowing of 
project margins continued in 2018 as is evident from the 
marginal growth in operating profit despite growth in the 
company’s turnover.

The year 2018 was the 14th year of operations for Nass 
Corporation B.S.C. The Group achieved a gross turnover of 
BD 182.770 million (BD 173.404 million for 2017) on which it 
achieved a profit before interest and depreciation of BD 
12.306 million (BD 10.099 million for 2017) and a net profit of 
BD 4.262 million  (BD 3.525 million for 2017). 

Surge in the oil price along with fiscal reforms has provided 
the required momentum for the GCC countries to push public 
expenditure. The Bahrain construction industry in particular is 
buoyant backed by projects such as BAPCO Expansion, Al 
Marassi, GCC marshal fund backed projects and King 
Abdulla medical city project, which are expected to run 
beyond 2019. The Group has healthy work-order situation 
and is hopeful of securing more works during the course of 
the year out of the above projects. 

The board is cognizant of its responsibility and taking steps to 
streamline the cost structure in order to be competitive in the 
bidding process and building up the work order. The Group 
has performed satisfactorily and fulfilled external agencies 
obligations and is confident of carrying on its performance in 
a feasible manner in the coming periods.

Order Book Position
The work-orders on hand of constituent divisions/companies 
(excluding Trading Divisions) at beginning of year 2019 
amounts to a value of BD 100.971 million. In addition, our 
portion of work pertaining to joint venture projects is BD 2.949 
million.
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Joint Ventures
Your Group is presently engaged as a joint venture partner in 
the following joint ventures.

     BD ‘000

Contrack 

JV partner Project Contract value

International

Tension Fabric 
Hanger at Sh.Isa Air 
Base, Shipment and 
Support Facility etc. 12,439

Contrack Watts 
Repair of Quay Wall NSA Bahrain,
Construction of Mini Mart 11,391

Corporate Governance

Employee Relations

Acknowledgements

On behalf of Board of Directors 
Nass Corporation BSC

Sameer Abdulla Nass
Chairman

Sami Abdulla Nass
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Date: 26 February 2019
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Your Company is committed to a pro-active Corporate 
Governance Plan and is making satisfactory progress in that 
direction. The guidelines stipulated by the regulatory 
agencies are being followed pro-actively. A detailed report 
on the progress of Corporate Governance compliance and 
the expected dates there of forms a part of the 
documentation being provided to the shareholders at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting on 28 March 2019.

The Audit Committee is actively involved in the various 
aspects of corporate functioning. It meets regularly with a 
view to strengthen the existing Management Information 
Systems and Internal Control Systems and is involved in 
providing directions on policy issues. The Company has a 
Remuneration Committee that comprises of three directors, 
two of whom are independent, non-executive directors. The 
Board constituted Group Tender Committee (GTC) to assist 
the Board in discharging its oversight duties relating to 
establishing of intra-group pricing policy and to perform 
advisory role in pricing process of high value bids.

Internal Audit function that has been outsourced to 
professional auditors is being carried out satisfactorily with 
special emphasis on risk management and corporate 
governance issues. The Group’s ‘Compliance Manager’ who 
looks after the day-to-day compliance matters as required by 
the regulatory authorities is pro-actively following the 
regulatory guidelines.

The Board of Directors propose to recommend 
re-appointment of M/S KPMG Fakhro as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Group for the year 2019.

The relations between the Management and employees of 
the Group continue to remain cordial. The Group firmly 
believes that its workforce is instrumental in its overall 
success and is indeed a valuable asset of the Group. On 
behalf of the Board of Directors, we sincerely acknowledge 
and appreciate the contribution of its employees at all levels.

On behalf of all the shareholders and the Board of Directors, 
we take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude and 
appreciation to His Majesty King Hamad Bin Isa Al Khalifa, 
King of the Kingdom of Bahrain, to His Royal Highness Prince 
Shaikh Khalifa Bin Salman Al Khalifa, the Prime Minister, to 
His Royal Highness Prince  Shaikh Salman Bin Hamad Al 
Khalifa, the Crown Prince, Deputy Supreme Commander and 
First Deputy Premier, to all Government Ministries and 
Institutions, especially the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of 
Industry Commerce and Tourism, the Central Bank of Bahrain 
and the Bahrain Bourse for their continuing support.

We also appreciate support extended to us by our bankers, 
financial institutions, suppliers and business associates, 
share registrar, our Statutory Auditors M/S KPMG Fakhro and 
our Internal Auditors BDO for the year 2018.

Auditors
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Nass Corporation is steadily growing their presence throughout 
the GCC. The organisation will remain focused on building 
relationships throughout the region whilst maintaining their 
position as an industry leader in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

GEOGRAPHICAL 
PRESENCE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

KPMG Fakhro CR No. 6220
12th floor, Fakhro Tower Telephone: 807 224 17 973+ 
PO Box 710, Manama  Fax: 443 227 17 973+ 
Kingdom of Bahrain Email: kpmgbh@kpmg.com.bh

  
Nass Corporation BSC 
Manama – Kingdom of Bahrain 

 
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
  
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Nass Corporation BSC 
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position 
as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated  financial statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.  
  

Contract accounting and revenue recognition  
(Refer to accounting policy in note 3(n) and disclosure in Note (16) to the consolidated financial statements) 
  

Description  How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

 
Determination of  revenue to be 
recognized on construction contracts is a 
key audit matter because of the judgment 
involved in identifying the separate 
performance obligations within a contract 
and  determining  when control  over 
goods and services transfers to the 
customer. Revenue is recognized based 
on contract costs to date as percentage of 
total forecast costs.   
 
An error in the contract forecast could 
results in a material variance in the amount 
of profit or loss recognized to date and 
therefore also in the current period.  

 
 We evaluated the Group’s process for identifying the separate  

performance obligations within a contract and for determining the 
contract price ;  
 

 We reviewed all significant contracts and discussed each with 
management to obtain full understanding of the specific terms and 
risk, which informed our consideration of whether revenue was 
appropriately  recognised; 
 

 We evaluated and tested the operating effectiveness of internal 
controls over the accuracy and timing of revenue recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements, including controls over detailed 
contract reviews performed by management that included 
estimating total cost, stage at which control is transferred to the 
customer; 
 

 We challenged the financial assessment of the contract progress 
over time through discussion with commercial management and 
comparing the outcome of our discussion with the underlying 
records; 
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  We assessed the accuracy of management forecasting by 
comparing the historical financial performance of ongoing and 
completed contracts with original budgets and forecast margins for 
those contracts;  

 We evaluated significant exposure to contract variations, claims 
and liquidated damages for late delivery of work by assessing 
management estimates included in the monthly contract review 
summary, which tracks the nature, quantum and status of such 
exposures. We also assessed other underlying records, if any, such 
as legal and third party expert reports commissioned by the Group 
over contentious positions; and   

 Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in relation to 
contract accounting and revenue recognition by reference to the 
requirements of relevant accounting standards. 

 

   
 

The recoverability of trade and other receivables and adequacy of expected credit loss provision  
(Refer to accounting policy in note 3(d).) and disclosure in Note 24(b). 
 

DDeessccrriippttiioonn                  HHooww  oouurr  aauuddiitt  aaddddrreesssseedd  tthhee  kkeeyy  aauuddiitt  mmaatttteerr    

Trade receivables and other receivables 
make up 43.5 % of the Group’s total assets 
(by value).  
 
Significant judgment is required by the 
Group in assessing the adequacy of the 
expected credit loss provision for trade 
and receivables and contract assets.  

 We evaluated  the design and tested the operating effectiveness of 
the Group's relevant credit control  and collection procedures;  
 

 We evaluated the appropriateness of the Group’s excepted credit 
loss model under IFRS 9; 

  We evaluated the reasonableness of assumptions and key inputs 
used in the model; 

  Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures by reference to 
the requirements of the relevant accounting standards.   

 Other information  
The board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditors’ report, 
we obtained the Board of Directors’ report which forms part of the annual report, and the remaining sections of the annual 
report are expected to be made available to us after that date. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained 
prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we a re 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of the board of directors for the consolidated financial statements 
The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as the board of directors determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

 

 

 
The forecast profits on contracts include 
key judgments over the expected recovery 
of costs arising from variations and claims. 
The inclusion of these amounts in the 
contract forecast where they are not 
recoverable could result in a material error 
in the level of profit or loss recognized by 
the Group. 
 

 
 We evaluated a sample of forecast costs to complete for 

reasonableness by assessing the basis of their calculation based 
on  the monthly contract review summary prepared by project 
managers and considered the performance of those contracts and 
costs post- year end; 

Description (continued)  (continued)
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal 
control. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the board of directors.  
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue 
as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial  statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest  benefits of 
such communication.  
  
RReeppoorrtt  oonn  ootthheerr  rreegguullaattoorryy  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss  
As required by the Commercial Companies Law, we report that:  

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial statements are in agreement therewith;  
b) the financial information contained in the directors’ report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements;  
c) we are not aware of any violations during the year of the  Commercial Companies Law, or the terms of the Company’s 

memorandum and articles of association that would have had a material adverse effect on the business of the 
Company or on its financial position; and  

d) satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by management in response to all our requests. 
  The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Jalil AlAali  

KPMG Fakhro 
Partner registration number 100 
26 February 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
As at 31 December 2018                                                                                       Bahraini dinars ‘000 
 

 Note 2018  2017 
AASSSSEETTSS      
Property, plant and equipment 5 27,436  27,687 
Investment properties  7 2,100  - 
Equity accounted investees 6 1,592  993 
Other assets  982  291 

Total non-current assets  32,110  28,971 
     
Inventories 8 9,622  14,706 
Assets held for sale 7 -  2,348 
Trade and other receivables 9 69,002  65,689 
Contract assets 10

22
 31,516  28,476 

Due from related parties 5,596  5,834 
Deposits with banks  366  609 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 10,417  11,332 

Total current assets  126,519  128,994 

Total assets  158,629  157,965 
 

EEQQUUIITTYY          

Share capital 20 22,000  22,000 
Treasury shares 20 (1,597)  (1,597) 
Statutory reserve 21 8,767  8,341 
Retained earnings   31,960  31,495 
Donations and charity reserve  43  23 
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  61,173  60,262 
Non-controlling interest  3,170  2,722 

Total equity   64,343  62,984 
     
LLiiaabbiilliittiieess      

Bank loans  12 3,668  822 
Employee benefits 13 7,627  7,071 

Total non-current liabilities  11,295  7,893 
     
Trade and other payables 14 40,988  43,294 
Contract liabilities  15 8,570  15,732 
Employee benefits 13 3,799  3,265 
Due to related parties 22 9,505  8,028 
Bills payable  1,236  2,475 
Bank loans 12

11
 981  1,079 

Bank overdrafts  17,912  13,215 

Total current liabilities  82,991  87,088 

Total liabilities  94,286  94,981 

Total equity and liabilities  158,629  157,965 
The consolidated financial statements  were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2019 and signed on its 
behalf by:  

 
Sameer Abdulla Nass             Sami Abdulla Nass 
Chairman                                                                                                 Deputy Chairman & Managing Director  
The accompanying notes from 65 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
for the year ended 31 December 2018                                                                                   Bahraini dinars ‘000 
 
 Note 2018  2017 
     
      

Revenue 16 182,770  173,404      
Cost of sales   (163,994)  (156,079)  
Gross profit 
 

  
18,776 

  
17,325 

Other income 17 857  578 
General and administrative expenses 18 (12,909)  (12,696) 
Impairment losses on trade  and other receivables and contract 
assets  

 10, 9  (1,793)   (2,103)
 

Finance income  67  105 
Finance cost  (950)  (485) 
Share of profit from equity accounted investees, net 6 1,130  1,741      
Profit for the year    5,178  4,465 
     
Other comprehensive income   -  -      
Total comprehensive income for the year  5,178  4,465 
     

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:     
Equity holders of the parent  4,262  3,525 

Non-controlling interest  916  940 
      

 5,178  4,465 Earnings per share   
    

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Fils)  19 19.81  16.39 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sameer Abdulla Nass             Sami Abdulla Nass 
Chairman                                                                                               Deputy Chairman & Managing Director  
 
 
 

The accompanying notes from 65 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY       
for the year ended 31 December 2018                                                                                                                                                                                    Bahraini dinars ‘000 
 
 

   Attributable to equity holders of the parent 

Non-
controlling 

interest 
Total 

Equity 
2018 Share 

capital 
Treasury 

shares 
Statutory 

reserve 

 
Retained 
earnings 

Donations & 
charity 

reserve Total 
             
 
At 1 January 2018 (as previously reported) 22,000 (1,597) 8,341 31,495 

 
23 60,262 2,722 62,984 

Impact of adopting IFRS 9  
(note 3 (a)) - - - (2,466) - (2,466) (186) (2,652) 
Impact of adopting IFRS 15  
(note 3 (b)) - - - 200 - 200 - 200 
BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt    
11  JJaannuuaarryy  22001188  ((rreessttaatteedd))  22,000 (1,597) 8,341 29,229 23 57,996 2,536 60,532 
 
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4,262 

 
- 4,262 916 5,178 

 
Transfer to statutory reserve for 2018 --  --  426 (426) --  -- 

 
--  

 
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - 658 

--  

665588  
 
2017 Appropriations approved:     

 
  

Dividend (5 %)  - - - (1,075) - 
 

(1,075) 
 

(940) ((22,,001155))  

Donations and charity reserve - - - 30 - - --  
    

(30) 
    

Utilization of donation and charity reserve - - -  (10) (10) - 
     
AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  22001188  22,000 (1,597) 8,767 

 
31,960 43 

 
61,173 

 
3,170 

  
((1100))  

 
64,343 

 

The accompanying notes from 65 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)                                                                                                                                                               Bahraini dinars ‘000 
 

  Attributable to equity holders of the parent 

Non-
controlling 

interest 
Total 

Equity 
2017 Share 

capital 
Treasury 

shares 
Statutory 

reserve 

 
Retained 
earnings 

Donations      
& charity 

reserve Total 
             
At 1 January 2017 22,000 (1,597) 7,988 29,408 35 57,834 2,296 60,130 
         
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 3,525 - 3,525 940 4,465 
         
Transfer to statutory reserve for 2017 - - 353 (353) - - - - 
 
2016 Appropriations approved:     

 
   

dividend (5 %)  - - - (1,075) - (1,075) (514) (1,589) 

Donations and charity reserve - - - (10) 10 - - - 
         
Utilization of donation and charity reserve - - - - (22) (22) - (22) 
         
At  31 December 2017 22,000 (1,597) 8,341 31,495 23 60,262 2,722 62,984 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31 December 2018                                                                                           Bahraini dinars ‘000 

 
 Note 2018  201 7 
Cash flows from operating activities     
     
Profit for the year   5,17 8  4,465 
Adjustments for:     
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 5,931  5,149 
Depreciation of investment property  78  - 
Impairment of investment property  169  - 
Impairment of trade receivables (net) 9 1,793  2,018 
Impairment of due from customers 10 -  85 
Amortization of held to maturity investment  -  4 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 17 (100)  (122) 
Share of profit from joint ventures, net 6 (1,088)  (1,821) 
Share of (profit) / loss from associate  (42)  80 
Employee benefits  556  1,114 
     Changes in:     
Inventories   5,084  (7,445) 
Trade and other receivables  (8,312)  (10,66 2) 
Contract assets  (2,840)  (20,970) 
Due from related parties  238  1,745 
Trade and other payables  (17,201 )  2,777 
Contract liabilities   7,575  10,570 
Employee benefits  534  345 
Due to related parties  1,477  1,218 
Bills payable  (1,239)  1,006 
     
Net cash used in operating activities  (2,209 )  (10,444) 

     

Cash flows from investing activities      
     
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (4,288)  (10,207) 
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment  356  237 
Acquisition of subsidiary  (1,000)  - 
Interests in joint ventures 6 531  1,573

5,528

(2,869)

 
Deposits with banks  243       
Net cash used in investing activities    (4,158)  
     

Cash flows from financing activities       
     
Proceeds from bank loans   4,463  1,928 
Repayment of bank loans   (1,715)  (1,378) 
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the parent  (1,043)  (1,107) 
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders  (940)  (514) 
Donations paid  (10)  (22)      
Net cash from / (used) in financing activities  755  (1,093) 
     

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (5,612)  (14,406) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January   (1,883)  12,523 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 11 (7,495)  (1,883) 

The accompanying notes from 65 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                                    
for the year ended 31 December 2018  

 
1 REPORTING ENTITY  

Nass Corporation B.S.C. (the “Company”) is a public shareholding Company incorporated and registered in 
Bahrain on 9 March 2006  under commercial registration number 60037 and was listed on the Bahrain 
Bourse on 22 November 2005.  
 
The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are mainly engaged in civil engineering, mechanical and 
electrical contracting, manufacture and supply of manpower to related contracting activities. It is also involved 
in the sale of ready mixed concrete, ice blocks, spare parts, foodstuff, and general trading and undertakes 
contracts relating to precast concrete and water supply. 
 
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 comprise the results of the 
Company and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures. Unless otherwise stated, 
the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary 
shares, which are held directly by the Group and the proportion of ownership interests held equals to the voting 
rights held by Group.  
 
The Group’s material subsidiaries, interest in joint ventures and associates are as below:  

Subsidiaries 

Name of the entity 
Country of 
incorporation 

Proportion of 
ownership and 
voting power held 
by the Group Principal activities 

Nass Contracting Co. W.L.L. 
 

Bahrain 100 % Civil engineering 

Nass Mechanical Contracting 
Company W.L.L. 

Bahrain 100 % Mechanical fabrication 
and maintenance 

Nass Electrical Contracting Co. 
W.L.L.  

Bahrain 100 % Electrical contracting 

Delmon Readymix Concrete and 
Products Company W.L.L. 

Bahrain   80 % Ready mixed concrete 

Delmon Precast Company 
W.L.L. 

Bahrain   80 % Precast concrete 

Nass Dredging Company 
W.L.L. 

Bahrain   60 % Extraction of marine sand  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                              
for the year ended 31 December 2018
1     REPORTING ENTITY (continued) 
 

Joint ventures 
 

Name of the entity 
Country of 
incorporation 

Proportion of 
ownership and 
voting power 
held by the 
Group Principal activities 

    
Nass Contrack Joint Venture Bahrain 50 % General contracting 
    
Nass Murray Roberts Joint Venture Bahrain 50 % General contracting 
    
Nass Burhan Joint Venture Bahrain 50 % General contracting 
    
Nass Bramco Joint Venture Bahrain 50 % General contracting 
    
Nass Emco Joint Venture Bahrain 50 % General contracting 
    
Nass Contrack Watts Joint 
Venture 

Bahrain 50 % General contracting 

 Breamer Nass W.L.L.  Bahrain  50 %  General contracting 

 
 Associates 
 

Name of the entity 
Country of 
incorporation 

Proportion of 
ownership 
and voting 
power held by 
the Group Principal activities 

    
Dona Marine Co. W.L.L. Bahrain 33.33 % Transportation of bulk 

materials by marine vessels 
    

 
The subsidiaries, associates and joint venture have the same financial year end as the Company. 
 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of Bahrain Commercial Company Law 2001 (as amended). 
 

b) Basis of measurement 
The consolidated financial statements have been drawn up from the accounting records of the Group under the 
historical cost convention.  
 

c) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2018 
The Group adopted IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. Refer to Note 3(a) 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                              
for the year ended 31 December 2018
2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 

 
d) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective 
 

The following standards and amendments which are relevant to the Group have been issued but not yet effective 
and accordingly  have not been applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
(i) IFRS 16 Leases  
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance lease sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to 
make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor 
accounting remains similar to the current standard- i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating 
leases. 
 
IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 determining whether an 
arrangement contains a lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of 
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease 
 
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.  
The Group is still assessing the impact on its consolidated financial statements from adoption of this standard. 

 
(ii) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 

10 and IAS 28).  
The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 
Investments in associates and joint ventures. 
 
The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on whether the non-monetary 
assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture constitute a ‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business 
Combinations). 

 
The effective date for these changes has now been postponed until the completion of a broader review 
 
The Group does not expect to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements from this 
amendment.  
 
(iii) Long term interests in associates and joint ventures  
An amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures will affect companies that finance such 
entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future 
(referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment, which addresses equity-accounted loss absorption 
by LTI, involves the dual application of IAS 28 and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. 
  
The amendment applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted.   
 
The Group does not expect to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements from adoption 
of this amendment. . 
 

e) Early adoption of standards 
The Group did not early adopt new or amended standards and /or interpretations in 2018. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                              
for the year ended 31 December 2018                                                                                           Bahraini dinars ‘000 

 
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting polices applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set 
out below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and are consistent with those 
applied in prior years except for changes arising from adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as set out below: 
  

a) Changes in significant accounting policies  
 
(i)   Adoption of IFRS 9 “financial instruments” 

 
IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some 
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement.  

 
The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. Due to the transition options chosen by the Group 
in applying this standard, comparative information throughout these consolidated financial statements has not 
been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards.  
  
The effect of initially applying this standards is mainly attributed to an increase in impairment losses recognised 
on financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets  which has been adjusted against the opening 
balance of retained earnings as 1 January 2018.  

 
As a result of adopting IFRS 9, the Group has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of 
Financial Statements”, which require impairment of financial assets to be presented in a separate line item in 
the statement of profit or loss and OCI.  Previously, the Group’s approach was to include the impairment of 
trade and other receivables and contract assets in general and administrative expenses. Consequently, the 
Group reclassified impairment losses amounting to BD 2,103, recognised under IAS 39, from ‘general and 
administrative expenses’ to ‘impairment loss on trade and other receivables and contract assets  in the 
statement of profit or loss and OCI for the year ended 31 December 2017.  
  
Additionally, the Group has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
that are applied to disclosures about 2018 but have not been generally applied to comparative information 

 
The following table summarises the impact of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening of retained earnings and NCI  

  

 

 
 

The ECL on cash and cash equivalents and contract assets was not significant.   
 
 
 

 
 

  
Retained 
earnings 

 Non- 
controlling 

interests 
    
Balance under IAS 39 at 31 December 2018 31,495       2,722 
Impact of expected credit loss on trade and other receivables and 
contract assets 

(2,466)  (186) 

 
Balance under IFRS 9 on date of initial  
application at 1 January 2018  

      
29,029  

      
2,536 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Classification and measurement of financial instruments 
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, FVOCI 
and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which 
a financial asset is managed and on its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 
39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.  
 
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.  
There were no significant changes to the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. 
 
The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 January 2018 relates solely to the 
new impairment requirements. 
 
The following table reconciles the original classification categories and carrying amounts of financial assets under         
IAS 39 to the new classification categories and carrying amounts under IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.  

 
 Original 

classification 
under IAS 39 

New 
classification 
under IFRS 9 

Original carrying 
amount under 

IAS 39 at 31 
December 2017 

Re-measure-
ment 

New carrying 
amount  under 

IFRS 9 at        
   

1 January 2018    
            
Trade and  
other  receivables 

Loans and  
receivables 

Amortised cost 93,302 (2,652) 90,650 

   
   

balances with banks  and 
bank deposits 

Loans and 
 receivables 

Amortised cost 11,725 - 11,725 

      
Investment in debt 
instrument  

 
Held to 
maturity 

Amortised cost 291  - 291 

 
  105,318 (2,652) 102,666 

 

Impairment of financial assets  
  
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new impairment 
model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are 
recognised earlier than under IAS 39. For assets in the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses 
are generally expected to increase and become more volatile.  
 
The Group has determined that the application of IFRS 9 impairment requirements at  
1 January 2018 resulted in an additional allowance for impairment as follows: 
 

 
 

  

Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 6,231 
Additional impairment recognised at 1 January 2018 on:  
   Trade and other receivables and  contract assets 2,652 

Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 8,883 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
ii) Adoption of IFRS 15 revenue from contract with customers  
 

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is 
recognised. It replaces IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. 

 
The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of initially applying this 
standard recognised at the date of initial application (i.e.1 January 2018). Accordingly, the information presented 
for 2017 has not been restated to reflect the new requirements – i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, 
under IAS 18, IAS 11 and related interpretations.  

 
The following table summarises the impact, net of tax, of transition to IFRS 15 on retained earnings and Non-
controlling interest (NCI) at 1 January 2018. 

 

 As at 31 
December 2017 

Adjustments due to 
adoption of  IFRS 15 

Adjusted opening balance at 1 
January 2018 

Retained earnings  31,495 200 31,695 
 

Non -controlling interest 
 

2,722 
 

- 
 

2,722 
 

 
There was no significant impact from adopting IFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended  31 December 2018.  
 
The details of the main new significant accounting policies and the nature of the changes to previous accounting 
policies in relation to the Group’s various goods and services are set out below.  

 

Type of 
product 
/service 

New revenue recognition 
criteria Change from previous accounting policy

 

Performance 
obligations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A performance obligation is a 
promise in the contract to 
transfer a good or service to a 
customer – it is the unit of 
account for contract accounting.  
 
The Group, based on the 
guidance of the new standard, 
identifies separate components 
of a contract that may result in 
goods or services being 
unbundled or bundled.  
 
If a revenue arrangement from a 
bundled contract includes more 
than one performance 
obligation, the arrangement 
consideration is allocated to 
each performance obligation 
based on their relative 
standalone selling price. 

The Company provides a significant integration services 
by combining all the goods and services in the contract, 
into a combined item for which the customer has 
contracted. Combination of these assets are generally 
represents a single performance obligation. 
 
However, the Group exercises judgment whether the 
different elements of the contract are closely inter-related 
or interdependent based on the comprehensive guidance 
of IFRS 15, and that a significant integration service is 
performed in order to account for the contract as a single 
performance obligation. 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Variable 
consideration  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Variable consideration is estimated at 
either the ‘expected value’ (i.e. the 
sum of probability weighted amounts) 
or the ‘most likely amount’ (i.e. the 
single most likely amount) and 
included in the revenue to the extent 
that is highly probable that the 
revenue would not reverse.  
 
 

As per previous accounting policy, contract revenue 
includes the initial amount agreed in a contract plus 
any variations in contract work and claims to the 
extent that it is probable that they can be measured 
reliably and will be accepted by the customer. 
 
The adoption of IFRS 15 resulted in a change of the 
approach to account for variable considerations, 
which is now based on ‘expected value’ or ‘most likely 
amount’. Also the Group assesses which of the two 
methods best predicts the amount of consideration to 
which it would be entitled   

Contract Costs  
 

 
 

 

Contract costs that are incremental in 
obtaining a contract with a customer 
are capitalized and amortised over 
the period of related revenues. 

Previously all contract costs were expensed as 
incurred.   
 
Adoption of IFRS 15 resulted in recognition of contract 
assets and subsequent amortisation in respect of 
these costs within the Group’s balance sheet.  

b) Basis of consolidation 
(i) Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an investee if it is exposed to, or has 
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through 
its power over the investee. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control effectively ceases. 
 
(ii) Transactions and non-controlling interest 
Interests in the equity of subsidiaries not attributable to the parent are reported in consolidated equity as non-
controlling interest.  Non-controlling interests are recognised initially at their share of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised in the purchase accounting, excluding goodwill. Profits or losses 
attributable to non-controlling interests are reported in the consolidated comprehensive income as profit or loss 
attributable to non-controlling interests.  

 
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity 
owners of the Group.  For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration 
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.  
 
(iii) Interests in equity-accounted investees 
Associates are those enterprises in which the Group holds, between %20 and %50 of the voting power and 
exercises significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies.  A joint venture is an 
arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the 
arrangement rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.   
 
The Group reports its interest in associates and joint ventures using the equity method. The investments are 
initially recognised at cost which includes transaction costs, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased 
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisit ion. Distributions 
received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. 
 
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate or a joint venture, the Group’s carrying 
amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group 
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or the joint venture. 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions with 
subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Intra-group gains on transactions 
between the Group and its equity accounted associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the 
Group’s interest in the investees. Unrealised losses are also eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but 
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 
 

c) Financial instruments  
Financial assets of the Group comprise Trade and other receivables (including related party), cash and cash 
equivalents and Bank deposits. Financial liabilities of the Group comprise Bank loans, trade and other payables 
(including related party), bills payable and bank overdraft. 
 
(i) Recognition and initial measurement 
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and 
financial  liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

 
Financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is 
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the 
transaction price. 

 
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement  

 
  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 

Financial assets  
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI or FVTPL. 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its 
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on 
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated  
as at FVTPL: 

 
 it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised 
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

        Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 
Financial assets  
  The Group classifies financial assets as loans and receivables that are measured at amortised cost.   

 
Financial liabilities   
  Liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(iii) De-recognition 

 
 Financial assets 

The Group  derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group  neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial 
asset. 
   

 Financial liabilities 
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified 
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised 
at fair value. 

 
On de-recognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the 
consideration (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
d) Impairment of financial assets 

 
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 

 The Group   recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on: 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and 
Contract assets 
 
The Group measures loss allowances for trade and  receivables and contract assets based on simplified 
approach i.e. an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For bank balances, measurement of loss allowances is based 
on 12 month ECL.   
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset at amortised cost has increased significantly since 
initial recognition when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is 
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information 
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience.   
 
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days 
past due. 
 
The Group considers a financial asset be in default when: 
 

 the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to 
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

 the financial asset  is more than  90 days past due for private customers, and 271 days past due for 
government entities.  

 
Measurement of ECLs 
Trade receivables and contract assets - (Simplified approach)  
The Group uses allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade and other receivables and contract assets 
 
Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate (Net-flow)’ method based on the probability of a receivable 
progressing through successive stages of delinquency to the loss bucket. Recovery from the loss bucket is also 
considered for computing the historical loss rates. Roll rates are calculated separately for exposures in different 
segments based on the customer’s common credit risk characteristics.   
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Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past five years. These rates are adjusted to 
reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been 
collected, current conditions and group view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the 
receivables.  The forward looking adjustment of the loss rates is based on a qualitative score card which 
factors the management’s view on the future economic and business conditions.     
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

 
 

Cash and Bank balances – (General approach) 
Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects 
the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit 
risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.  

 
Credit-impaired financial assets  
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired.  A 
financial asset at amortised cost is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable data: 
 

 significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
 a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due for all receivables and  

contract assets other than receivables from government where 271 days past due is considered as 
default; or 

 it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.  
 
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 
of the assets.  

 
Write-off 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of 
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual customers, the Group individually 
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable 
expectation of recovery. Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in 
order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
 
Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 
The Group assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial assets or a group of financial assets is impaired as a  
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the assets (a ”loss event”) and the loss 
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably 
estimated. 
 
For financial assets at amortised cost, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carring amount and present value of the estimated cashflow (excluding future credit losses) discounted at the financial 
assets, original effective interest rate.  If, in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loses decreases 
and the decrease can be related objectively to on event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
e) Foreign currency transactions 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional” currency). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Bahraini Dinars, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency, 
and are presented in thousands, except specifically stated otherwise. 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  
(ii) Transactions and balances   

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Bahraini dinars, which is the Group’s measurement currency, 
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at the statement of financial position date are translated into Bahraini dinars at the foreign 
exchange rate ruling at that date. All foreign exchange differences arising on conversion and translation are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
(iii) Group companies   

 The Group does not have any significant investment in foreign operations. Majority of the Group entities 
functional currencies are BHD and USD, and hence, the translation of financial statements of the group entities 
do not result in significant exchange differences.   

 
f) Assets held for sale 
  Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.  
  
g) Property, plant & equipment 

(i) Owned assets 
Property, plant and equipment which include capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.  Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, the 
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, capitalised 
borrowing costs, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their 
intended use. 
 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each  reporting date. 
An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount. Capital work-in-progress relating to property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less 
impairment losses, if any.   Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 
in profit or loss. 
 
(ii) Subsequent measurement 
Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that is accounted for 
separately, is capitalised. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the item of property, plant and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised 
in profit or loss as an expense as incurred.  The capital work-in-progress is transferred to respective block of 
property, plant and equipment once it is ready to use. 

 
(iii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of items of 
property, plant and equipment. No depreciation is charged on freehold land. The estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 

Property, plant & equipment class Estimated useful life in years 
  Buildings  3 – 15 
Improvements on leasehold land 3 – 15 
Plant, machinery and motor vehicles 3 – 15 
Vessels and barges 10 – 15 
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 1 – 5 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
h) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, (other than inventories), are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 
or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).   
 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.  Impairment losses of other 
assets are recognised in prior periods and assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
 

i) Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of food inventory is determined 
on the FIFO basis. The cost of all other inventory is determined on a weighted average basis according to the 
nature of specific business segments. The cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and 
bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated selling expenses. 
 

j) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with original 
maturities of three months or less when acquired which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in fair value. 
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of 
bank overdrafts. 

 
k) Contract assets and liabilities 

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the 
reporting date. Due from contract customers are transferred to receivables when the rights become 
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to the customer.  
 
Contract liabilities  primary relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which  revenue is 
recognised over time.  
 

l) Provisions 
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event that can be measured reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 

 
m) Operating leases 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of 
the lease.  
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
n) Revenue recognition 

 
Policy from 1 January 2018 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises 
revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.  
 
(i) Contract revenue  

The Group has determined that for construction contracts, the customer controls all of the work in progress 
as the work is being performed. This is because these are made to a customer’s specification and generally 
at the client’s premises. If a contract is terminated by the customer, then the Group is entitled to 
reimbursement of the costs incurred to date, including a reasonable margin. Invoices are issued according 
to contractual terms. Un-invoiced amounts are presented as due from contract customers net of any 
expected credit losses. Revenue against variations are recognized only if the variations have been approved 
by the customers. If variations are for distinct services from original contract, the variations are accounted 
for as a separate contract else it is accounted for as a modification of the original contract. Contracts which 
are negotiated with a same commercial objective and relate to a single performance obligation with the 
same customer are combined and accounted for as a single contract.  
 
Revenue is recognised over time based on contract costs incurred to date as a percentage of total forecast 
cost. The related costs are recognised in profit or loss when they are incurred. Advances received are 
included in “contract liabilities”. 
 

(ii) Sale of goods 
Customers obtains control when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted at their premises or 
on delivery to the customer’s agents. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when  the goods are delivered 
and have been accepted by customers at their premises.  

   
  Policy before 1 January 2018 

(iii) Contract revenue and expense 
Contract revenue and expense are recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of 
the contract as soon as the outcome of the contract can be measured reliably. Contract revenue includes 
the initial amount agreed in a contract plus any variations in contract work and claims to the extent that it is 
probable that they can be measured reliably and will be accepted by the customer.  
 
The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for the work 
performed at the balance sheet date relative to the estimated total contract costs, completion of a physical 
proportion of the contract work and surveys of work performed depending on the nature of the contract. 
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss on a contract 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 
(iv) Sale of goods 

Sales represent the invoiced value of goods supplied and services performed during the year measured at 
the fair value of consideration received or receivable. The revenue is recognised when the significant risk 
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer and the recovery of the consideration is 
probable, usually when the goods are delivered and accepted by the customer.  

 
(v) Hire income 

Hire income represents the value of scaffolding and equipment hire charges and related services provided 
and are recognised as when the services are rendered. 
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3    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
o) Employee benefits 

(i) Bahraini employees 
Pensions and other social benefits for Bahraini employees are covered by the Social Insurance Organisation 
scheme to which employees and employers contribute monthly on a fixed-percentage-of-salaries basis. The 
Group’s contribution to this scheme, which represents a defined contribution scheme under IAS 19 - Employee 
Benefits, is expensed as incurred. 

 
(ii) Expatriate employees  

 Expatriate employees are entitled to leaving indemnities payable under the Bahraini Labour Law for the Private 
Sector effective in 2012, based on length of service and final remuneration. Provision is made for amounts 
payable under the local labour law based on the employees accumulated periods of service since the previous 
settlement dates and latest entitlements to salaries and allowances at the statement of financial position date.  

 
p) Finance income and expense 

Finance income and expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 
 

q) Treasury shares 
Where the Company purchases its own equity share capital, the consideration paid, including any attributable 
transaction costs, are deducted from total equity and recorded as treasury shares until they are cancelled.  
Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any gain or loss is included in equity. 

 
r) Statutory reserve 

In accordance e with the Commercial Companies Law, a minimum of 10 % of the profit for the year  is 
appropriated to a statutory reserve, until it reaches 50 % of the paid-up share capital. This reserve is not normally 
distributable, except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law.  
 

s) Earnings per share 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the year excluding the average number of ordinary shares 
purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares. 
 

t) Segment reporting 
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s ‘chief operating 
decision maker’ (Board of Directors) to make decisions about resource allocation to each segment and assess 
its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.  An operating segment is divided into 
business segments. For management purposes the Group is organised into two major business segments. 

 
u) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
     

v) Trade payables 
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method. 
 

w) Investment properties  
Investment properties are those, which are held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both. 
Investment properties are carried at cost less depreciation and any impairment,. Depreciation is calculated on 
cost by the straight-line method at annual rates, which are intended to write off the cost of the investment property 
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. Any gain or loss of disposal ( the difference between the net 
proceeds from the disposal and the carrying amount of the property) is recognised in profit or loss in the period 
in which it arises.  
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.   

Nass Corporation B.S.C. Annual Report 2018  

78



 
 

  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS                              
for the year ended 31 December 2018                                                                                           
 
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES 
The Group makes accounting estimates and judgements that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year and are included in the following notes. . Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances 
 

a) Judgment  
 
 3(n) - revenue recognition: whether revenue from contract is recognised over time or at a point in time. 

Determining when control transfers to the customer requires significant judgement.  
 

 
b) Estimates and assumptions  
 

 Note 3(c) - measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables and contract assets: key assumptions in 
determining the weighted average loss rate  

 Note 3(h) impairment testing of property plant and equipment: key assumptions underlying the recoverable 
amounts.   

 Note 3(i) – Impairment testing of inventory. Key assumptions underlying NRV.   
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPM ENT   

Cost 

Land 
& 

buildings 

Improvements 
on leasehold 

land 

Plant, 
machinery, 

vehicles, 
vessels & 

barges 

Office 
equipment, 
furniture & 

fixtures 

Capital 
work in 

progress Total 

       

At 1 January 2018 12,584 4,347 60,228 1,287 280 78,726 
Additions  105 1 3,647 83 452 4,288 
Additions on acquisition of subsidiary - 299 1,349 - - 1,648 
Transfer from capital work in progress - 295 - - (295) - 
Disposals  - - (1,811) (1) - (1,812) 
       
At 31 December 2018 12,689 4,942 63,413 1,369 437 82,850 
       
Depreciation       

At 1 January 2018 3,577 2,876 43,361 1,225 - 51,039 
Charge for the year 490 423 4,966 52 - 5,931 
Disposals - - (1,555) (1) - (1,556) 
       
At 31 December 2018 4,067 3,299 46,772 1,276 - 55,414 
       
Net book value  

      

At 31 December 2018 
8,622 1,643 16,641 93 437 27,436 
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 

Cost 

Land 
& 

buildings 

Improvements 
on leasehold 

land 

Plant, 
machinery, 

vehicles, 
vessels & 

barges 

Office 
equipment, 
furniture & 

fixtures 

Capital 
work in 

progress Total 

       
At 1 January 2017 12,433 4,290 51,553 1,291 236 69,803 
Additions  178 31 9,500 36 462 10,207 
Transfer from capital work in progress - 26 386 6 (418) - 
Disposals  (27) - (1,211) (46) - (1,284) 
       
At 31 December 2017 12,584 4,347 60,228 1,287 280 78,726 
       

      

At 1 January 2017 3,095 2,395 40,357 1,212 - 47,059 
Charge for the year 509 481 4,100 59 - 5,149 
Disposals (27) - (1,096) (46) - (1,169) 
       
At 31 December 2017 3,577 2,876 43,361 1,225 - 51,039 
       
Net book value        
At 31 December 2017 

9,007 1,471 16,867 62 280 27,687 

 
 
 

 
 
The depreciation charge has been allocated to cost of sales / contract costs - BD 5,244 (2017: BD 4,511) and general administrative expenses – BD 687   
(2017: BD 638). 
 
 
 

 
Depreciation 
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 
Properties of the Group 
  

No Address Description Existing use Type and Tenure Average age of 
the property 

Net book 
value 

1 Building No. 910, East Al Ekar  Office/ Factory/Garage/Stores Building Business Leasehold 
renewable on an 
annual basis 

11 - 21 years - 

2 Plot No. 7019250  &  7019248 
Salmabad  

Land Business Freehold 21 -29 years 328 

3 Building No. 1295, Road 239 
Salmabad 702  

Building Business Leasehold 20 years 29 

4 Plot No. 01) 4-00-9078)  
Hidd Industrial Area 

Office/Workshop/Stores Building Business Leasehold for 10 
years renewable 

12 years 509 

5 Plot No. 07019247 
Salmabad  

Land Business Freehold 4 year 1,753 

6 Plot No. 1359, Ras Zuwaid Land and Building Business Freehold 6 year 522 

7 Plot no. 12001760, Ras Zuwaid Land and Building Business Freehold 6 year 2,429 

8 Plot No. 12010988, Lhassay Land and Building  Business Freehold  2 year 1,034 

9 Plot No. 12010989, Lhassay Land  Business  Freehold 2 year  1,326 

10 Plot No. 12009273, Lhassay Land Business Freehold  2 year 1,084 
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6 INTERESTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE 

 
Equity accounted investees includes investment in associate balance as at 31 December 2018 BD 2017) 311: BD 269). Share of profit from equity associated investees 
includes income from associate during the year 2018 BD 2017 ) 42: loss (80) ).  

 
 

The movement on interest in joint ventures is as follows: 
 2018  2017 
    
At 1 January 724  476 
(Repayment) / net cash settlement during the year -  (711) 
Share of profit for the year 1,088  1,821 

Distribution of profits during the year  (531)  (862) 
    
 1,281  724 

 
a. Investments in joint ventures  

   
The Group is presently engaged as a joint venture partner in the following joint ventures: 

Joint Venture Subsidiary involved Interest % 
Undistributed capital and profits  

at the end of the year 
2018 2017 

Nass Contrack Joint Venture Nass Contracting Company W.L.L. 50 507 418 

Nass Burhan Joint Venture Nass Contracting Company W.L.L. 50  636 4 

Nass Contrack Watts Joint Venture Nass Contracting Company W.L.L. 50 138 302 

     
  Total 1,281 724 

 
All the joint ventures except Braemar Nass W.L.L. are unincorporated entities. 
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6 INTERESTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (continued) 

 
The following table summarizes the financial information of material joint ventures as included in its own financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition 
and difference in accounting policies. The table also reconciles the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in joint ventures. 

 

Joint Venture (JV) Non-current assets 
Cash and cash 

equivalents 
Other current 

assets 
Other current 

liabilities 
Net Asset 

(100 %) 

Group’s share of 
net assets  

(50 %) 
 Carrying amount 

of interest in JV 

2018       
Immaterial joint ventures - 435 187 622 - - 

Material joint venture 118 1,792 5,950 5,299 2,561 1,281
 

 Total 118 2,227 6,137 5,921 2,561 1,281 

 

Joint Venture (JV) Non-current assets Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Other current 
assets 

Other current 
liabilities 

Net Asset 
 (100 %) 

Group’s share of 
net assets  

(50 %) 
 Carrying amount 

of interest in JV 

2017      
 

Immaterial joint ventures - 1,261 187 1,448 - - 

Material joint venture 185 2,084 3,517 4,339 1,447 724 
 
Total 185 3,345 3,704 5,787 1,447 724  
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6 INTERESTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (continued) 

 

Joint Venture (JV) Revenue 
Depreciation  

and  
amortisation  

Interest income 
Profit (loss) from 

continuing 
operations 

Total 
comprehensive 

income (loss) 

Group’s share of
 

comprehensive 
income (loss) 

(50 %) 

Dividend 
received by the 

Group 
2018        

Immaterial joint ventures 610 - - 610 610 305 305 

Material joint venture 9,136 76 - 1,566 1,566 783 226 

Total 9,746 76 - 2,176 2,176 1,088 531 

 

Joint Venture (JV) 
Revenue

 
Depreciation 

and 
amortisation 

Interest income 
Profit (loss) from 

continuing 
operations 

Total 
comprehensive 

income (loss) 

Group’s share of 
comprehensive 

income (loss) 
(50 %) 

Dividend 
received by the 

Group 
2017        

Immaterial joint ventures 1,212 - - 133 133 67 - 

Material joint venture 10,310 76 - 3,509 3,509 1,754 862 

Total 11,522 76 - 3,642 3,642 1,821 862 
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

This represent 7 residential villas received in 2017 in lieu of a receivable from a customer of which 1 villa 
was sold and the balance 6 villas  was recognised as assets held for sale. The assets were recognised at 
the fair value on the date of transfer as determined by an independent third party valuer having relevant 
experience of similar properties in the same location using the sales comparison approach. During the year, 
the properties were transferred to Investments Property because the Group was not able to dispose of the 
property within the 12 months timeframe allowed by IFRS 5 - discontinued operations and assets held for 
sale.   

8 INVENTORIES  2018  2017 
    

Raw materials 6,194  10,986 
Machineries, spares, fuels and lubricants 3,857  3,132 
Goods in transit 22  28 
Food products 1,567  2,055 
Finished goods 711  826 

 12,351  17,027 
    Impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories 

(2,729)  (2,321) 
    
 9,622  14,706 

Movements on impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete 
inventories  

2018  2017 

    At 1 January 2,321  1,421 
Charge for the year 416  936 
Write-back during the year (8)  (36)     
At 31 December 2,729  2,321 

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 2018  2017     
Trade receivables 49,611  46,744 
Retentions receivable 23,292  15,793 
Advances to suppliers and sub-contractors 4,163  7,709 
Prepaid expenses 830  863 
Other receivables 875  691 
Staff receivables 130  120     

 78,901  71,920 
Allowance for impairment losses 

(9,899)  (6,231) 
    
 69,002  65,689 

 

Movements on allowance for impairment losses  2018  2017      
At 1 January 6,231  4,345 
Additional impairment recognised under IFRS 9 2,652  - 
Charge for the year 1,793  2,018 
Write-off during the year (777)  (132)     
AAtt  3311  DDeecceemmbbeerr  9,899  6,231 

 
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, and impairment losses for trade and other receivables, is 
included in note 24. 
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10 CONTRACT ASSETS 

 2018  2017 
    
Cost incurred plus attributable profits on contracts-in-progress 301,140  230,349 

Progress billings made towards contracts-in-progress (269,539)  (201,129) 
 

   
 

31,601  29,220     
Allowance for impairment losses (85)  (744) 
    
 31,516  28,476 

 

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, and impairment losses for due from contract 
customers is included in note 24. 

 
11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

 2018  2017 
    
Cash and bank balances 7,260  10,167 
Short-term bank deposits 3,157  1,165 
    
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of financial position 10,417  11,332 
Bank overdrafts (17,912)  (13,215) 
    
Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flows  (7,495)  (1,883) 

 
12 BANK LOANS 

 2018  2017 
    Current  981  1,079 
Non-current  3,668  822 
    
 4,649  1,901 

 

Movement during the year as follows: 
 2018  2017 

At 1 January 1,901  1,351 
Loans received during the year 4,463  1,928 
Loans repaid during the year (1,715)  (1,378)     
At 31 December 4,649  1,901 

 

The effective interest rate on loans and borrowings was 4.89% - 5.94% p.a. (2017: %3.88 - 5.00% p.a.).  
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13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

 2018  2017 
    
At 1 January 10,336  8,877 
Charge for the year 4,798  4,203 
Paid during the year (3,708)  (2,744) 
    
 11,426  10,336 

 

Analysed as    
Current liabilities 3,799  3,265 
Non-current liabilities 7,627  7,071 
    
 11,426  10,336 

 

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 2018  2017 
    
Trade accounts payable 18,542  17,427 
Accrued expenses 15,286  17,680 
Unclaimed dividends 1,619  1,587 
Retentions payable 3,493  3,090 
Other payables 2,048  3,510 
    
 40,988   43,294 

 

Information about the Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks is included in note 24. 
 

15 CONTRACT LIABLITIES 
 2018  2017 
    
Progress billings received and receivable 70,494  57,259 

Costs incurred plus recognised profits on contracts-in-progress (61,924)  (41,527) 
    
 8,570  15,732 

 
16 REVENUE 

  
A. Revenue streams 
 2018  2017     
Revenue from contracts with customers    
- Contract income 134,514  128,301 
- Sales of goods 35,470  36,337 
- Hire income 12,786  8,766     

 182,770  173,404 
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16 REVENUE (continued) 
 

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 
 
In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market, 
major products and service lines and timing of revenue recognition. 
 
 

Contract income, 
Manufacturing, 

Service Trading Elimination  Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Primary Geographical markets 

 
Bahrain 173,319 157,458 18,246 17,158 (26,455) (24,320) 165,110 150,296 
Outside Bahrain  17,917 23,108 - - (257) - 17,660 23,108 
 191,236 180,566 18,246 17,158 (26,712) (24,320) 182,770 173,404 

Type of Markets 
 

Government 
Sector 

84,122 79,022 646 466 - - 84,768 79,488 

Non-
government 
Sector 

107,114 101,544 17,600 16,692 (26,712) (24,320) 98,002 93,916 

 191,236 180,566 18,246 17,158 (26,712) (24,320) 182,770 173,404 

Timing of revenue recognition 
 

Products 
transferred at a 
point in time 

42,034 37,338 18,246 17,158 (20,355) (15,630) 39,925 38,866 

Products 
transferred over 
time 

149,202 143,228 -  (6,357) (8,690) 142,845 134,538 

Revenue from 
contracts with 
customers 

191,236 180,566 18,246 17,158 (26,712) (24,320) 182,770 173,404 

 
C. Contract Balances 

 
The amount of BD 15,732 recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the period has been recognised 
as revenue for the period ended 31 December 2018. 
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17 OTHER INCOME 

 2018   2017  
    
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 100  122 
Write-back of provision for inventory 8  36 
Miscellaneous income 749  420     
 857  578 

 
18 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 2018   2017  
    
Salaries of administration staff 7,476  7,153 
Management consultancy fees 1,560  1,560 
Depreciation 687  638 
Commission  369  330 
Vehicle expenses 415  463 
Rent, electricity and water 524  433 
Communication 245  237 
Directors' remuneration and sitting fees 301  295 
Staff recruitment and training 160  279 
Impairment of investment properties 169  - 
Professional fee 413  235 
IT expenses 228  204 
Other expenses   362  869     
 12,909  12,696 

 
19 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year excluding the 
average number of ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares, as follows:  
  

 2018  2017 
    

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent  4,262  3,525 
    
Weighted average number of shares at 31 December (000’s) 215,077  215,077     
Basic earnings per share 19.81  16.39 

Diluted earnings per share have not been presented as the Company has no instruments convertible into 
shares that would dilute earnings per share. 

 
20 SHARE CAPITAL 

 2018  2017 

a) Authorised share capital    
500,000,000 (2017: 500,000,000) shares of 100 fils each 50,000  50,000 

b) Issued and fully paid    
220,000,000 (2017: 220,000,000) shares of 100 fils each 22,000  22,000 

    
Treasury shares: 201) 4,923,1607: 4,923,160)  (1,597)  (1,597) 

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share 
at general meetings of the Company. All rights attached to the Group’s shares held by the Company are 
suspended until those shares are re-issued. 
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20    SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 
 

c) Dividends 
Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of BD 5 fils per share, amounting to BD 1,075 is being 
proposed by the Board of Directors for the approval at the Shareholders Annual General Meeting on 28 March 
2019. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.  No interim dividend was paid during 
the year (2017: Nil). 

 
 2018  2017 
    Proposed dividend 1,075  1,075 

Donations and charity reserve 30  30 
 1,105 

 
1,105 

The major shareholders are:
 

Name of Shareholder 

Number 
of shares 

held 

Percentage 
of 

ownership Nationality 
    
1. Mr. Sameer Abdulla Nass* 18,810,000 8.55 Bahraini 
2. Mr. Sami Abdulla Nass* 18,810,000 8.55 Bahraini 
3. Mr. Adel Abdulla Nass* 18,810,000 8.55 Bahraini 
4. Mr. Ghazi Abdulla Nass* 18,810,000 8.55 Bahraini 
5. Mr. Fawzi Abdulla Nass* 18,810,000 8.55 Bahraini 
6. Abdul Rahman Saleh Al Rajhi and Partners Company 

Limited 
 

16,603,776 
 

7.55 
Kingdom of 

Saudi Arabia 
    

Total 110,653,776 50.30  
  

* The shares held by Directors are in their individual capacity.  
       
The distribution schedule of shareholders as at end of the year is as follows:  
  

 
Categories Number of shares 

Number of  
Shareholders 

Percentage of total 
outstanding shares 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
       
Less than 1 % 74,240,743 69,984,428 7,973 8,001 33.74 31.81 
1 % up to less than 
5 %** 

35,105,481 39,361,796 9 10 15.96 17.89 

5 % up to less than 
10 % 

110,653,776 110,653,776 6 6 50.30 50.30 

10 % up to less than 
20 % 

- - - - - - 

Total 220,000,000 220,000,000 7,988 8,017 100.00 100.00 
 

** Includes 201) 4,923,1607: 4,923,160) treasury shares.
 
21 STATUTORY RESERVE 

 
In accordance with the requirements of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law (the “Law”) a minimum of 
10 % of the net profit is appropriated to a statutory reserve, until such reserve reaches 50 % of the paid-up 
share capital. This reserve is not normally distributable, except in the circumstances stipulated in the Law. 
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22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Transactions with 
related parties are conducted in the normal course of business. 

 
Related party Sales / Revenues 

Purchases and
 operating expenses
 

Amounts due from Amounts due to 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
A.A. Nass & 
Sons and its 
related 
companies 

1,068 6,770 17,547 12,930 3,934 4,831 9,062 7,586 

Joint ventures  2,037 1,168 - - 1,662 1,003 443 442          
Total 3,105 7,938 17,547 12,930 5,596 5,834 9,505 8,028 

 

During the year, the parent company has provided guarantees of BD 113,432 (2017: BD 100,357) to various 
banks for banking facilities or other financial accommodation to its subsidiaries. 
 
Technical and managerial consultancy fee paid to A.A. Nass & Sons Co. WLL by the Group amounts to  
BD 201) 1,5607: BD 1,560) 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the Group. The key management personnel comprise members of the Board 
of Directors, the Divisional Managers, the General Managers and their compensation is as follows: 

 
 2018  2017 
    
Short-term benefits 1,573  1,520 

Post-employment benefits 103  94 
  

1,676 
  

1,614 
 

The short-term compensation includes provision for directors’ fees of BD 201) 927: BD 92) charged to profit 
or loss subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and board committee 
attendance fees of  BD 209 (2017: BD 203).    

 
23 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE 
 

i) Fair value measurement   
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the 

 
When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active 
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place 
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 
 

 

most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects 
its non-performance risk. 
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23  ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUES (continued) 
 
 Fair value hierarchy  

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in making the measurements: 
 
 Level 1 

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 
 

 Level 2  
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market 
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in 
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs 
are directly or indirectly observable from market data. 
 

 Level 3  
Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique 
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on 
the instrument’s valuation.  
 
None of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is measured at fair value. The fair value of the Group’s 
material financial assets and liabilities approximate the carrying amount due to their short-term nature.  

 
ii) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities, together with the carrying amounts as disclosed in 

the statement of financial position. 
 

 2018 (under IFRS 9) 
 The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are classified and carried at amortised cost.  
 
 

2017 (under IAS 39) Loans and 
receivables 

Others at 
amortised cost 

Total carrying 
value 

    
Trade and other receivables 64,826 - 64,826 
Due from related parties 5,834 - 5,834 
Term deposits with banks 609 - 609 
Cash and cash equivalents 11,116 - 11,116  
 

 
82,385 - 

 
82,385 

    

Bank loans  - 1,901 1,901 
Trade and other payables - 25,614 25,614 
Due to related parties - 8,028 8,028 
Bills payable - 2,475 2,475 
Bank overdrafts - 13,215 13,215  
  

 
51,233 

 
51,233 
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
a) Overview 
 Financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets of the Group include 

cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, trade receivables, due from related parties, and 
certain other current assets. Financial liabilities of the Group include trade payables,, due to related parties, 
bills payable, loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts and certain other current liabilities. 

 
 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

 credit risk 
 liquidity risk 
 market risk 

  
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of 
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk 
management framework.  
 
The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk 
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in 
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by 
Internal Audit. 
 

b) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s trade and other receivables, 
contract assets, related parties receivables, short term-term deposits with banks and bank balances.  

 

(i) Exposure to credit risk 
 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 
 

 2018  2017 
    
Trade and other receivables (net) 68,172  64,826 
Contract assets   31,516  28,476 
Due from related parties 5,596    5,834 
Term deposits with banks 366  609 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,247  11,116  
 115,897 

 
110,861 
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

 
(ii) Trade and other  receivables  

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.  
 

 Sales limits are established for each customer, which are reviewed periodically. Customers that fail to meet 
the Group’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis.  In 
monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including 
whether they are government and semi-government and corporates,  industry, aging profile, and existence 
of previous financial difficulties.  The Group operates mainly in the Kingdom of Bahrain.  
 
The credit period established by the Group for all its receivables is 90 days after which the dues are 
classified as past due.  
 
The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. The Group does not have 
trade receivables and contract assets for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral.  

 
(iii) Contract assets 

This primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting 
date on construction contracts.  The contract assets during the year was not significantly impacted by an 
impairment charge.  

 
(iv) Due from related parties 

 Due from related parties pertains to the receivable from the holding company and other related parties.  
Transactions with related parties are conducted in the normal course of business, at rates agreed between 
the parties.  The credit risk on these is perceived to be limited.  

 
(v) Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks 

Group’s credit risk on these is limited as these are placed with banks in Bahrain having good credit ratings. 
 
(vi) Concentration risk 

 Concentration risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar economic activities or 
activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to 
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. 
The Group seeks to manage its concentration risk by establishing geographic and industry wise 
concentration limits 
 

(vii) Credit risk by segment 
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and other receivables and related party dues at 
the reporting date by segment is: 

 2018  2017 
 

Construction and 
allied activities Trading activities  

Construction 
and allied 
activities 

Trading  
activities 

Trade and other receivables 64,183 3,989  61,757 3,069 
Contract assets 31,516 -  28,476 - 
Due from related parties 3,822  5,156 678 
Term deposits in banks 366 

1,774 
-  609 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 9,105 1,142  9,936 1,180  

108,992 6,905 
  

105,934 4,927  
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(viii) Impairment losses 
 

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and other 
receivables and contract assets  as at 31 December: 

 2018 (under IFRS 9) 

 Weighted-
average 
loss rate 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

Impairment 
loss 

allowance 

Credit-
impaired 

     
Current (not past due)  %1 87,337 958 No 
1–30 days past due  %15 4,109 614 No 
31–60 days past due  %14 1,254 175 No 
61–90 days past due  %15 747 110 No 
More than 90 days past due  %54 14,906 8,025 Yes   

9% 
 

108,353 
 

9,882 
 

  

2017 (under IAS 39) 
 

 Gross Impairment 
   
Neither past due nor impaired 53,673 - 
Past due 0 - 90 days 4,749 - 
Past due 91 - 180 days 1,703 - 
More than 180 days  10,932 (6,231)  
 

 
71,057 

 
(6,231) 
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c) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk, associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, 
is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial obligations. The Group’s approach 
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Group’s reputation. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sel l a financial asset 
quickly at close to its fair value. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities: 
 
 

2018 Carrying  
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

 6 months 
or less 

6 - 12 
months 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years 

 
Bank Loans  4,649 

 
5,268 

 
682 536 1,392 2,658 

Trade and other 
payables 25,702 25,702 

 
9,063 13,073 3,566 - 

Due to related parties 9,505 9,505  3,802 5,703 - - 
Bills payable 1,236 1,250  1,250 - - - 
Bank overdraft 17,912 18,495  7,398 6,473 4,624 -  
 59,004 

 
60,220 

 
22,195 25,785 9,582 2,658 

 
 

Commitments and 
contingencies  

  
    

- Letter of credit 1,046 1,046  1,046 - - - 
- Commitments 535 535  535 - - - 

 

 
 

2017 Carrying  
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

 6 months 
or less 

6 - 12 
months 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years 

 
Bank Loans  1,901 

 
2,031 

 
725 386 548 372 

Trade and other 
payables 

25,614 25,614 
 

21,865 659 3,090 
- 

Due to related parties 8,028 8,028  3,211     4,817 - - 
Bills payable 2,475 2,516  2,516 - - - 
Bank overdraft 13,215 13,578  13,578 - - -  
 51,233 

 
51,767 

 
41,895 5,862 3,638 372 

 

Commitments and 
contingencies  

  
    

- Letter of credit 9,037 9,037  9,037 - - - 
- Commitments 549 549  549 - - - 
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d) Market risk 

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and 
equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, 
while optimising the return on risk. 

 
(i) Interest rate risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group's earnings will be affected as a result of fluctuations in the value 
of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk is limited to its 
interest bearing short-term deposits, loans and borrowings, and bank overdrafts.  

  
 At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was: 
 

  2018  2017 
Fixed rate instruments    
Term deposits with maturity of more than 3 months 366  609 
Term deposits with maturity of 3 months or less 3,157  1,165 
 
 

 
3,523 

  
1,774 

Variable rate instruments    
Bills payable 1,236  2,475 
Loans and borrowings 4,649  1,901 
Bank overdraft 17,912  13,215   

23,797 
  

17,591 
 

 The effective interest on these financial instruments is as follows: 

Financial instruments 

2018 
Effective 

interest rate 
% p.a. 

 2017 
Effective 

interest rate 
% p.a. 

Term deposits with maturity of more than 3 months 3.30-4.10  2.28-2.50 
Term deposits with maturity of 3 months or less 2.80-4.15  2.44-2.86 
Loans and borrowings 4.89-5.94  3.88-5.00 
Bank overdraft 3.94-5.67  2.98-4.73 

  
 An increase/ (decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased 

(decreased) profit or loss by BD (203) ( 2017: BD (158) ). 
 
 Changes in market interest rates are not expected to have a significant impact on the carrying value of these 

financial instruments. 
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(ii) Foreign exchange risk 
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the Group’s earning will be affected as a result of fluctuations in 
currency exchange rates. The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk on its purchases invoiced in 
foreign currency.  The Group’s exposure to significant foreign currency risk at the reporting date was only 
to EURO total exposure as at 31 December 2018 was Euro 159 thousand (2017: Euro 1,058 thousand). 
 

The Group does not perceive that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates will have any significant impact on 
the income or equity because the exposure to currencies other than US $ are not significant. 
 

(iii) Equity price risk 
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk as it does not have any investments in equity securities. 
 

e) Operational risk 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the 
Group’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, 
market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally 
accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group’s operations. The 
Group manages operational risk through appropriate monitoring controls, instituting segregation of duties 
and internal checks and balances, including internal audit and compliance.  
 

f) Capital management 
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the Group. The Board of Directors monitors both the 
demographic spread of shareholders, as well as the return on capital, which the Group defines as total 
shareholders’ equity excluding non-controlling interest, and the level of dividends to shareholders. 
 
From time to time the Group purchases its own shares on the market; the timing of these purchases depends 
on market prices. Buy and sell decisions are made on a specific transaction basis by the Board. 
 
The Group has complied with local statutory capital requirements. The Group has also complied with 
covenants related to its bank borrowings. The Group does not have any other externally imposed capital 
requirements. There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year. 
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25 SEGMENT ANALYSIS                
The Group is organised into two operating divisions - Construction and Allied Activities and Trading Activities. 

 
The construction and allied activities are Civil engineering works, Mechanical fabrication and Maintenance contracts, Scaffolding and formwork, Readymix concrete, 
Precast, Floor and roof slabs, Electrical and instrumentation contracting. 

The trading activities are Supply of washed sand, Sweet water, Import and wholesaler of frozen foods, agents for equipment and material manufacturers.  
 

 Construction and Allied 
Activities Trading Activities  Eliminations  Consolidated 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017  2018 2017  
Revenue         
External sales 169,707 160,817 13,063 12,587 - - 182,770 173,404 
Inter-segment sales 21,529 19,749 5,183 4,571 (26,712) (24,320) - -          
TToottaall  rreevveennuuee  191,236 180,566 18,246 17,158 (26,712) (24,320) 182,770 173,404 
         

Segment result 5,292 2,801 146 1,682 - (125) 5,438 4,358 
Share of profit/ (loss) from joint ventures 1,088 1,821 - - - - 1,088 1,821 
Other gains and losses 851 555 115 48 - - 966 603 
Unallocated corporate expenses - - - - - - (2,314) (2,317)          
PPrrooffiitt  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr        5,178 4,465 

 
    

 Construction and Allied Activities Trading Activities Consolidated 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Other Information       
Depreciation 5,099 4,716 832 433 5,931 5,149 
Capital expenditure 3,821 9,067 467 1,140 4,288 10,207 
Total assets 146,296 147,784 12,333 10,181 158,629 157,965 
Total liabilities 90,348 91,113 3,938 3,868 94,286 94,981        
TToottaall  nneett  aasssseettss  55,948 56,671 8,395 6,313 64,343 62,984 
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26  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 2018  2017 
    
Guarantees 62,753  59,188 
Letters of credit  1,046  9,037 
Capital commitments 535  549 

 

The banks have provided guarantees (performance, retention, financial and others related to contracting 
activities) amounting to BD 62,753 (2017: BD 59,188) for the various divisions and subsidiaries of the parent 
company. 

 
27   OPERATING LEASE RENTALS 

 2018  2017 
    
Minimum lease payment recognised as an expense during the year 5,019  3,999     
Future minimum lease payments:    

-     not later than one year 3,469  3,557 
- later than one year and not later than five years 1,439  1,100 
- later than five years 1,173  1,085     

Aggregate rental lease expenditure contracted at statement of 
financial position date 

6,081 
 

5,742 

 

 The operating lease is cancellable / renewable by mutual consent of the lessee and the lessor. 
 

28   COMPARATIVES 
 
The comparative figures have been regrouped, where necessary, in order to conform to the current year’s 
presentation. Such regrouping did not affect the previously reported profit and total comprehensive income 
for the year or total equity. 
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29    RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 

 Liabilities Equity Non-
controlling 

interest 

Total 
 Bank 

loans 
Share 

capital 
Treasury 

shares 
Retained 
earnings 

Other 
reserves 

Balance at 1 January 2018 1,901 22,000 (1,597) 31,495 8,364 2,722 64,885 

Changes from financing cash flows        
Borrowings (net) 2,748 - - - - - 2,748 
Dividend paid - - - (1,043) - (940) (1,983) 
Donation paid - - - - (10) - (10) 
Total changes from financing cash flows 2,748 - - (1,043) (10) (940) 755 
Equity-related changes  - - 1,508 456 1,388 3,352 
 
Balance at 31 December 2018 

 
4,649 

 
22,000 

 
(1,597) 

 
31,960 

 
8,810 

 
3,170 

 
68,992 
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